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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is

given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this annoucement,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever

arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.

This announcement for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Health Group Inc. (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to China Health Group Inc. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquires, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief: (1) the information contained in this announcement is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this announcement herein or this
announcement misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this announcement have been arrived at after due and careful

consideration and are found on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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FRHE
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (hereinafter referred to as the
"Board"), I hereby announce the audit results of CHG and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter referred to as "Group") for the year ended December 31,
2020.

The Group's core strategy is to build a R & D-type Digital Medical Co
health care, focusing on brain science, allergy and virus three major
disease areas, and establishes five major specialty brands: Hein mental
psychology, Bayern anti allergy, Yuejie addiction, Jianshou anti
infatuation, Rare diseases.

Innovating business model, strengthening sustainable innovation The
Company proposes two models in the epidemic situation and the new era
of medical treatment. 1. "Research based treatment RWS therapy model"
is to carry out clinical and big data research on Five specialty clinical
through real world clinical research, guide drug treatment in the research,
and obtain medical big data guidance research in the treatment. 2. The
D-CRCO model (Digital-Clinical Research =~ Commercialization
Organization) is a digital clinical research promotion platform. It uses big
data clinical research to precisely enable the commercialization of
products. These two models will redefine research-based treatment and
research-based promotion to replace traditional treatment and
com-mercialization.

Building the combat effectiveness of digital medicine

Around the core treatment field, we build a medical terminal service
complex with intelligent digital technology and medical technology
support, from R & D to patient closure, and form a closed-loop system
from scientific research to rehabilitation. From hospital big data clinical
research to digital scientific research product promotion service, to build
digital research clinical research specialty, to special specialized medical
clinic, and then to rehabilitation medical and tourism medical service.

Annual breakthrough of the Group - to become a leading research
and academic institution in the field of anti allergy

The anti allergy treatment group we serve is becoming a leading brand.
Allergic diseases have become one of the most popular diseases
threatening human health. Nearly a quarter of adults and a third of
children suffer from allergic diseases. A considerable number of allergic
patients suffer from asthma, rhinitis and other diseases. The group,
baimin anti allergy center, is committed to becoming the world's leading
anti allergy center. In the field of antiallergic, from clinical research to
commercial pharmacies. We have cooperated with many medical
institutions and large chains to build a special area for the prevention and
treatment of allergy. At present, more than six out of every ten anti
allergy drugs are completed by the clinical research center of baimin. The
Group will be responsible for a series of anti allergy, asthma and rhinitis
RWS-therapy and CRCO platforms to carry out real-world clinical
research after listing, serve experts to treat patients accurately in the
research and obtain research results in the treatment. Help enterprises to
promote digital chemistry.
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The founder of brain science research and digital academic promotion

The global exclusive microchip of Xienka, which is served by the Group,
is listed in this report. Alzheimer's disease, also known as Alzheimer's
disease, is also known as the "birth and death" disease which is more
cruel than "death". Alzheimer's disease is the most common cause of
dementia and the most common cause of death in the elderly. The
prevalence of Alzheimer's disease is 4% - 7% in the global population
over 65 years old. With the increase of age, the prevalence increases by
1% for every 6.1 years old. Xien anti dementia research group participated in
the clinical research of 80% products in Alzheimer's disease research,
including doneguazide, memantine, kabalatine and traditional Chinese
medicine. Brain science will be a bigger field after tumor. Our digital
clinical research center has been engaged in clinical and big data research
on stroke, dementia, epilepsy, Parkinson's disease and progressive frost
for a long time. It has participated in or organized more than 60% of
major clinical research in national brain science. Some of its projects have

also won the first and second prizes of National Science Progress Award.

Big data laboratories discover new drugs and guide drug use

In the research service, the Group's RWS Wanquan center has a grand
plan, which is to reorganize and organize existing medicines through the
big data real clinical research, and find a sure card for finding the best treatment.
In addition to finding that a batch of drugs such as Lito Bernard Vee
(Ritonavir) has an inhibitory effect on New Coronavirus (2019-nCoV),
we study on tobacco addiction diseases. How to prevent and treat stroke,
COPD, cardiovascular and lung cancer with Yueting and other drugs.

Build digital specialist clinic

In terms of big data medical services, we have established a research
digital area for drug diagnosis with several top medical institutions in
Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and other places, as well as top 100 chains
and digital medical groups such as Gaoji medical, Haiwang Xingchen,
micro medical group and miaozhou medical. We have also established a
research digital area for drug diagnosis, including the Department of
smoking cessation research and treatment, the Department of Xien
psychological research and treatment, the Department of allergy fever
and cough research and treatment, and the Department of antiviral
therapy Drug research and treatment area, etc., will play a great value to
patients in the epidemic and post epidemic era.

Bioanalysis laboratory supports medical research

The Company has established a biological sample testing laboratory and
is in the process of configuring waters UPLC-MS / ms.xevo TQS, which
is officially open to outside institutions. The laboratory mainly serves clinical
research, especially clinical research experiments of antiviral drugs. The
management believes that this will enhance the competitiveness of the
Company in new clinical research.

With the implementation of China's new health care reform and the advent of
the digital economy era, we believe that the company will focus on the three
major diseases in the past 15 years, and will break out a huge momentum to
promote the company's huge business growth and take off again with China!

Yours Sincerely,
GUO Xia
Chairman

22 March 2021
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Year ended 31 December
BE+H=+—HILFE
2020 2019
TARTRA TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
N RHETIE PN BT
Results S
Revenue e 83,063 63,216
Profit for the year A 60,650 27,792
Assets and Liabilities BEREE
Total Assets A E 159,895 111,232
Total Liabilities e fE 41,220 54,252
Shareholders’ equity 5 R 2 118,675 56,980
HIGHLIGHTS e

1. The Group recorded a consolidated turnover of approximately
RMBS83,063,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“Year”), which represents approximately 31.40% increase
from approximately RMB63,216,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019.

2. The Group recorded a profit before taxation of approximately
RMB70,796,000 for the Year, as compared with a profit
before taxation of approximately RMB32,454,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

3. The Group recorded an operating cash inflow before tax paid
of approximately RMB20,619,000 for the Year, as compared
with operating cash outflow of approximately RMB77,000 in
year 2019.

4. The basic and diluted earnings per share are RMB6.10 cents
and RMB6.08 cents respectively in 2020, while basic and
diluted earnings per share were RMB2.80 cents in year 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

RESULTS

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately RMB83,063,000
for the Year, which represents approximately 31.40% increase from
approximately RMB63,216,000 in 2019. Among them, revenue
from post-marketing research and academic extension services are
about RMB82,016,000 accounting for 98.74% of total revenue;
revenue from contractual clinical research services are about
RMB198,000, accounting for 0.24% of total revenue; revenue from
provision of contracted pharmaceutical development services are
about RMB849,000, accounting for 1.02% of total revenue; clinical
research is one of the four growth driving platforms that the Group
strives to build. The research-based promotion of terminal clinical
medicine, i.e. post-marketing research and academic promotion
services, has been widely recognized by the market; the contribution

of revenue accounted for 98.74%.

The Group recorded a profit before taxation of approximately
RMB70,796,000 for the Year, as compared with profit before
taxation of approximately RMB32,454,000 in the corresponding
period last year. Net profit in 2020 was approximately
RMB60,650,000, and in 2019 was approximately RMB27,792,000.
The increase in the profit was mainly due to business growth and the
sale of three loss making companies.

Total consolidated administrative expenses and staff costs were
approximately RMB11,888,000 for the Year and the corresponding
period last year is approximately RMB20,871,000. The decrease
was mainly due to the decrease of staff caused by the application of
Internet technology.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
RATIO

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net current assets and its net
assets were approximately RMB116,924,000 (2019: approximately
RMB54,743,000) and approximately RMB118,675,000 (2019:
approximately RMB56,980,000) respectively.

The gearing ratio was approximately 0.94% as at 31 December 2020
(2019: approximately 1.35%). The gearing ratio is derived by
dividing the total of borrowings by total assets. The gearing ratio has
decreased for the Year when compared to 31 December 2019
because total borrowings unchanged, total assets increased.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, the Group financed its operations with its own
working capital and bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2020,
the secured bank borrowing of the Group was approximately
RMB1,500,000 (2019: approximately RMB1,500,000), in which
approximately RMB1,500,000 (2019: approximately RMB 1,500,000)
are repayable within a period of not exceeding 5 years and there
is no secured bank borrowing repayable beyond 5 years (2019:
Nil), and there was no other borrowing as at 31 December 2020
(2019: Nil).

Meanwhile, considering the working capital and long term fund
demand for future development, the Group will consider to raise
further funds through bank loans, issuance of new shares,

convertible notes, and issuance of new debts, etc.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the Year, the Group's transactions were substantially
denominated in Renminbi ("RMB"). As such, the foreign
currency risk of the Group is limited. Currently, the Group has

not adopted any financial instrument for hedging purposes.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Directors will continue to follow a prudent policy in
managing the Group's cash and maintaining a strong and healthy
liquidity to ensure that the Group is well placed to take advantage
of future growth opportunities.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

Five years ago, the Group focused on big data of five core
diseases and post marketing clinical research, treatment and
commercial promotion from drug R & D services. The Group's
core strategy is to build a R & D-type Digital Medical Co health
care, focusing on brain science, allergy and virus three major
disease areas, and establishes five major specialty brands: Hein
mental psychology, Bayern anti-allergy, Yuejie addiction,
Jianshou anti infatuation, and Rare diseases.

With the deepening of health care reform, the Group takes
clinical research as the core competitiveness to build a precision
medicine big data platform, which will better guide treatment and
replace traditional CSO model with digital clinical research value

enabling promotion.
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Unicorn business model in the new blue ocean market

The Company proposes two models in the epidemic situation and
the new era of medical treatment. 1. "Research based treatment
RWS therapy model" is to carry out clinical and big data research
on Five specialty clinical through real world clinical research,
guide drug treatment in the research, and obtain medical big data
guidance research in the treatment. 2. The D-CRCO model
(Digital-Clinical Research Commercialization Organization) is a
digital clinical research promotion platform. It uses big data
clinical research to precisely enable the commercialization of
products. These two models will redefine research-based
treatment and research-based promotion to replace traditional

treatment and commercialization mode.

Building the combat effectiveness of digital medicine

Around the core treatment field, we build a medical terminal
service complex with intelligent digital technology and medical
technology support, from R & D to patient closure, and form a
closed-loop system from scientific research to rehabilitation,
from hospital big data clinical research to digital scientific
research product promotion service, to build digital research
clinical research specialty, to special specialized medical clinic,
and then to rehabilitation medical and tourism medical service.

Annual breakthrough of the group - to become a leading

research and academic institution in the field of anti-allergy.

The anti-allergy treatment group we serve is becoming a leading
brand. Allergic diseases have become one of the most popular
diseases threatening human health. Nearly a quarter of adults and
a third of children suffer from allergic diseases. A considerable
number of allergic patients suffer from asthma, rhinitis and other
diseases. The group, baimin anti-allergy center, is committed to
becoming the world's leading anti-allergy center. In the field of
anti-allergic, from clinical research to commercial pharmacies,
we have cooperated with many medical institutions and large
chains to build a special area for the prevention and treatment of
allergy. At present, more than six out of every ten anti-allergy
drugs are completed by the clinical research center of baimin.
The group will be responsible for a series of anti-allergy, asthma
and rhinitis RWS-therapy and CRCO platforms to carry out
real-world clinical research after listing, serve experts to treat
patients accurately in the research and obtain research results in

the treatment. Help enterprises to promote digital chemistry.

It is expected that we will use the core technology to carry out
more research on allergic drugs
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BB R T

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

P T 55 1 19 Mg 1 Bt o

AT A AR A A RO B BT IR A, 4 P 5
X1y WEERBIREERWS-Therapy ", RIS IR E E{H
Gk R 5 A i 3 o K SRR R BRI 114 568 RN K et
58, FEMFFSHARE LRI, 1RV h A B R R T
POBAHTER T 2 W AT ST B B D-CRCOBE”
(Digital 87T« Clinical iR« Researchflf 5% -
Commercialization &2EHOrganizationfH#%) , HIRUIEE
PRI T RE HE R REZE T SE AL o 15 P AT ASE =t o7 e AL
REZEWT TR RN T L B A B R A 5 5

WU T T T

WSROI, TR Je LA RE S B A 0 5 S
SO R R P& 20 R RO IR A i, K
PRI 21 FEA IR R P BRAS R o 18 B Be K BB ER R 57 2
YT R AL AR B, B W A BT A AR S
BE, ZURSRSERIEREES , PR U R R P s o

SR A S - I 25 B B S 1 SR 7 R T e

FoAM AR 19 PR OB I BB . AR B
B i N RSO TR —, AN S 22— R
AR =52 — 1y il szl gk ey, AR — 3o
B B 1 I T D0 9% B — B B AR FR L U PO B0
AR BRSSPI L o TEDUIR SR IAE B R A 5% 21 i 2
L5 TR PR R o B 2 RO A RS R KR g S
RGBT B SR S S I . H pr - E i
YA 7S AL R FRUES R I DB T K. A
H—RIPUBREL TS R RWS-THERAPY FICRCO-F-5
PR LT EEHREANR, EERAENR PR R
PR TEVRBET R T R o B O 25 B R 1k 22
Thrfe &

JRBETANVIG R ERAZ OB, BRI T2 B AR 5 o



BB R AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The founder of brain science research and digital academic promotion

The global exclusive microchip of Xienka, which is served by the
Group, is listed in this report. Alzheimer's disease, also known as
Alzheimer's disease, is also known as the "birth and death"
disease which is crueler than "death". Alzheimer's disease is the
most common cause of dementia and the most common cause of
death in the elderly. The prevalence of Alzheimer's disease is 4%
- 7% in the global population over 65 years old. With the increase
of age, the prevalence increases by 1% for every 6.1 years old.
Xien anti-dementia research group participated in the clinical
research of 80% products in Alzheimer's disease research, including
kabalatine and traditional Chinese
medicine. Brain science will be a bigger field after tumor. Our

doneguazide, memantine,
digital clinical research center has been engaged in clinical and
big data research on stroke, dementia, epilepsy, Parkinson's
disease and progressive frost for a long time. It has participated
in or organized more than 60% of major clinical research in
national brain science. Some of its projects have also won the
first and second prizes of National Science Progress Award.

It is expected that we will use stroke (the first death disease in
China) and dementia (the first future medical insurance payment)

to carry out more projects and obtain more benefits.

Big data laboratories discover new drugs and guide drug use

In the research service, the Group's RWS Wanquan center has a
grand plan, which is to reorganize and organize existing medicines
through the big data real clinical research, and find a sure card for
finding the best treatment. In addition to finding that a batch of
drugs such as Lito Bernard Vee (Ritonavir) has an inhibitory
effect on New Coronavirus (2019-nCoV), we study on tobacco
addiction diseases and how to prevent and treat stroke, COPD,

cardiovascular and lung cancer with Yueting and other drugs.

It is expected that we will use big data platform to screen more
new drugs.

Build digital specialist clinic

In terms of big data medical services, we have established a
research digital area for drug diagnosis with several top medical
institutions in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and other places, as
well as top 100 chains and digital medical groups such as Gaoji
medical, Haiwang Xingchen, micro medical group and miaozhou
medical. We have also established a research digital area for drug
diagnosis, including the Department of smoking cessation
research and treatment, the Department of Xien psychological
research and treatment, the Department of allergy fever and
cough research and treatment, and the Department of antiviral
therapy Drug research and treatment area, etc., will play a great

value to patients in the epidemic and post epidemic era.

2020 EHR &
2020 ANNUAL REPORT

BE_E-FE+-"A=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

NEFH R 75 BB 7 T R A

0 s B B R A B AN AR BT . BT
B, WRBR R EFRR, SRR “FEh” BB
Ay AR PO . PR R AR KBRS R
, BT e RO R A i LA BER IR, B 4F N i
MBI o AxBRespk A LB A N B BER IR R T4
%-7%, BEFEITER, FEahme. 1k, HARWFE M
1%, =RGURORITIEAL, 2RI 28 T
TR REM R EA T P 2R S8 0% 8 i Y
B RIS o R} K R MR R 12 19 B R s AR AR =
RUBRHAL IR FE o, RIIECA 2 F . BEoR Jl
o < AR AR ROIE S5 MR RN R R IE S, 2 B AL A
T 609% LA BB GG RHERE BRI RATTS , H A IR
TR RS A,

JEEBBTRAMAE A P AE B P9 55— DU T 2 R B — RSB O
SRR, BH R 2 SR IUE 2 s

KRB = BB 1%

R F, EEET “RWSERT.0” A ZEnE
Bl AR RO R R 9T T 5 R A [ B A 4
i, RGBT E e, REBAFEINE (Ritonavir
) SR TR R (2019-nCoV) A IIEIER, &
LIy s e s s N s 27 93 B R S SN )
FELAECOPD /L IS e S5 5507 o

P P TS B 3 2

WEUTHFH T2

FERBAR BRI R |, MBI B BB Z
R TH R BN N s B W ERIR MMM T
PRSI T e e SHUR e e AR e S S M T R R 2
, POHCEDTFE BEEE R B RUD BT R B R R
BB PR T SR R s U R AR BT S B IR T [
) FEBEIE MR B 1 A B L B 1 BB

T EEFREEERAA



2020F R E
2020 ANNUAL REPORT

BE_F_FHE+_A=+—HILEE

EEEF R AT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

It is expected that we will launch group brand specialty
outpatient service and pharmacy Wanquan specialty area in more

hospitals and cloud institutions.

Bioanalysis laboratory supports medical research

The Company has established a biological sample testing
laboratory and is in the process of configuring waters UPLC-MS
/ ms.xevo TQS, which is officially open to outside institutions.
The laboratory mainly serves clinical research, especially clinical
research experiments of antiviral drugs. The management
believes that this will enhance the competitiveness of the

company in new clinical research.

The Group started the board transfer work in this Year and will
continue to complete. It plans to start the financing plan in this
Year to help the Group achieve its strategic and sales objectives.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in this announcement, there was no significant

investment during this Year.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As of 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant

capital commitment.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES AND FUTURE
PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

During the Year, the Group did not carry out any material
acquisitions and disposals in respect of subsidiaries and
associates and there is no plan for making material investments

or acquiring capital assets as at the date of this report.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the total banking facilities available to
the Group amounted to RMB1,500,000 (2019: RMB1,500,000),
of which RMB1,500,000 had been utilised and secured by
personal guarantee. The details are set out in the note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not charge on
any of its assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not have any

significant contingent liabilities.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the Year, there had been no changes in the Company’s
capital (including ordinary shares and capital reserve) structure
except the increase in Capital due to the exercise of Share
options. As at 31 December 2020, the issued shares amounted to
about 995,351,660.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There was no significant disclosable event after the Year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group’s remuneration policy is basically determined by the
performance of individual employees. In addition to salaries and
bonuses, The Group also provided various other benefits to its
employees. Employee benefits included medical and pension

contributions and share options schemes.

The Group monitored closely the remuneration and fringe
benefits of the employees and rewarded employees in accordance
with the Group’s business performance. In addition, training and
development opportunities for the employees were also provided

by the Group.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group employed 153 and 82 employees as at 31 December
2019 and 2020. During the Year, staff cost, including directors’
RMB8g,288,000 (2019:
approximately RMB14,774,000). The Group remunerates its

remuneration was approximately
employees based on their performance, and the prevailing market
price. Other employee benefits include mandatory provident
fund, insurance and medical coverage, training programs and
share option scheme.

The Company adopted the share option schemes where share
options to subscribe for shares of the Company have been
granted to the eligible participants of the Group.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. GUO Xia, aged 55, is the Chairman and an executive
Director. He is also a member of the nomination committee and
GUO is

responsible for strategic planning and development, overall

remuneration committee of the Company. Mr.

management of the Group. Mr. GUO obtained with a Master
degree in science from University of Toronto in March 1997.
Mr. GUO has also completed various approved courses for the
degree of Master of Business Administration in Heriot-Watt
University and the Judge institute EMBA in University of
Cambridge. Before establishing the Group in December 1998,
Mr. GUO had worked for two pharmaceutical companies in
Canada, namely Ortho-McNeil Inc. under Johnson & Johnson
and Novopharm Limited under Teva Pharmaceutical Industries
Ltd as research scientist and process development manager,
respectively. Mr. GUO used to be the director and CEO of
Common Wealth Technology Inc listed on NSDAQ and vice
president of All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce
Medical Pharmaceutical Chamber, he also got National model
worker title and The National May 1 Labour Medal, and was
prized as ‘2005 Excellent creative enterpriser’ in 2005 by BCCC
(got the scholarship for EMBA study in University of
Cambridge).

Dr. SONG Xuemeli, aged 52, is an executive Director. She is also
the compliance officer the Company. Dr. SONG is responsible
for Clinical Research. Dr. SONG graduated from China Concord
Medical University with a Doctorate degree in clinical medicine
in July 1995. She is also a Registered Pharmacist in the PRC.
Prior to joining the Group in February 2000, Dr. SONG had served
as general manager of Beijing Tiancifu Biopharmaceutical Co.
Ltd.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. SU Yi, aged 48, has been appointed as a non-executive Director
since 18 May 2016. Mr. SU formerly worked for Fila China
Limited, Shanghai Pharmaceutic Group Limited, Venturepharm
Pharmaceuticals (Hainan) Limited, China Health Group Inc. etc.
and engaged as finance director and similar positons. He held
bachelor degree of Hydrolic Engineering from Tsinghua
University and Master Degree of Business Management from
Shanghai Jiaotong Zmanagement and more than 10 years of

experience in pharmaceutic industry.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. QIU Rui , aged 44, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of the audit committee
since 12 February 2018. He is also a member of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr.
QIU graduated from Peking University and holds bachelor
degree of Economics. With 20 years of working experience in
accounting and financial management and Merge& Acquisition.
Mr. QIU formerly worked for PwC and TPG, etc, and founded
several investment funds as the key member. Mr. QIU is the
founding partner of BDStar Capital and the directors of his
invested companies. Mr. QIU is the CFA and the CPA.

Dr. NI Binhui, aged 61, has been appointed as the independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of nomination
committee, as well as one of the members of audit committee and
remuneration committee since 31 March 2015. Dr. NI acts as
Vice President in Sanofi, and head of external Science &
Partnering-Asia Pacific. Dr. Ni holds a PhD in molecular
pharmacology from University of Toronto under fellowship and
post-doctoral fellowship in Clinical Pharmacology from National
Institute of Health. Dr. NI has over 40 publications in journals
including Science, PNAS and served as adjunct professors in
several universities in USA and Singapore. Dr. NI has over 20 years
of healthcare industry experience in the US and Asia/China. He
served in senior scientific and managerial positions for several
top Fortune 500 companies, including Eli Lilly (being Action
Group Chair, US), S'BIO (being Vice President/ head of Biology,
Singapore,) and Covance China (being General Manager,
China).

Mr. ZHEN Ling, aged 54, has been appointed as the independent
non-executive Director since 6 July 2018. He is also the chairman of
the remuneration committee of the Company and a member of
the audit committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. ZHEN is as global Senior Vice President of Quintiles and the
General Manager of R&D in Greater China where he oversees
the overall service offering and strategic growth in the region.
Mr. ZHEN joined legacy Quintiles in 2007 in the US, and in
2009, he moved to China to take on the role as the General
Manager of legacy Quintiles in Greater China region including
China, Hong Kong and Taiwan. Prior to Quintiles, Mr. ZHEN
served as a management consultant in the Life Science Group of
Ernst & Young Management Consulting in the US. Mr. ZHEN
received his Bachelor of Science degree from the University of
Science and Technology of China and his MBA degree from the
Kelley School of Business in Indiana University at Bloomington.
He also holds a Juris Doctor (JD) degree from the Law School of
North Carolina Central University and is a licensed attorney in
the state of North Carolina in the US.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present the annual report of the Company and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in

note 15 of the consolidated financial statements.
BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 to 11 of this report. Possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 28 to 46 of this
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
Environmental objectives:

» Achieve the balance between business growth and environmental
protection by improving the operations and practices as well as
encouraging the employees to adopt environmentally responsible
behaviour in workplace; and

* Minimise use and maximise reuse of resources and energy

Social objectives:

e Attract and retain the best people by creating a supportive and

quality workplace; and

» Care about employees’ welfare and satisfaction by encouraging
work-life balance and monitoring and improving employees’
satisfaction
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Approach

Monitored by the Board the Group is executing its environmental
and social strategy and achieving its related objectives through a

series of actions and commitments:

* Comply with environmental and social laws and regulations;

and
¢ Disclose KPIs as measurement of actual results
Environmental and social management system comprises:

e Compliance with environmental and social laws and

regulations; and
* Reporting and disclosure of our performance and KPIs

Measures for the achievement of environmental and
socialobjectives are:

e Data collection, calculation, and disclosure of KPIs

The implementation of environmental and social strategies,
management of environmental activities, and measurement of
achieving environmental and social objectives are monitored by
dedicated managerial staff members and finally by the board for
its overall ESG responsibility.

Communication with stakeholders

The Company holds shareholders’ meetings each year to provide
a platform for the Board and Shareholders to exchange views. In
addition, in order to maintain close relationship with customers, suppliers
and other stakeholders, the Company maintains communication
with the stakeholders from time to time through visits,
conference calls, corporate e-mails and other channels to listen to
their views and needs. The Company’s overall performance is
also reported each year to investors through the annual report.

Stakeholder engagement and materiality

Stakeholder engagement is a key success factor in formulating
our environmental and social strategy, defining our objectives,
assessing materiality, and establishing policies. Our key stakeholders
include customers, suppliers, business allies, employees, management
and shareholders. We have discussed or communicated with
stakeholders to understand their views and respond to their needs
and expectations, evaluated and prioritized their inputs to
improve our performance, and finally strived to provide value to

our stakeholders, community and the public as a whole.
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Based on the stakeholder engagement, we identified issues with

significant environmental and social impact and issues
concerning stakeholders. The results of materiality assessment
prioritized stakeholder inputs and made us focused on the

material aspects for actions, performance, achievements and

reporting. We present below the relevant and required disclosure.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.
During the Year, there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the

Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS AND
OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers, customers and other stakeholders
to meet its immediate and long-term goals.

During the Year, there were no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its suppliers, customers and/or other
stakeholders.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to
97 of this report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 24
to the consolidated financial statements.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
of this report, no equity-linked agreement was entered into by the
Company during the Year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution comprised of capital reserve and contributed surplus
of approximately RMB34,150,000 (2019:

RMB34,150,000).

approximately

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 98.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The Company or its subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or
redeemed any of its listed shares in the current year. Neither the
Company nor its affiliates have redeemed, purchased or

cancelled their redeemable securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date

of this report are:

Executive Directors:
GUO Xia (Chairman)
SONG Xuemei

Non-executive Director :
SU Yi

Independent Non-executive Directors:
QIU Rui

NI Binhui

ZHEN Ling
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTEREST IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Company’s Directors and chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), which are required (a) to notify
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have taken under such
provision of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

ERREETBARRBA ARG X5 s

RFECFEF A= H, AARZ S L EETH
NERARA T R EMBEE (7 Wi s e ge (1
R RG] ) ) EXVER) By AHBRR 0y 5k E S
, VR (a) RIRE RS RO B IR B 28 XV 58 7 B B 8 43 s AN &
Ao MBS S 5 A A B 2 s R IF R (B dht
SRR R S MO B S I SO R VR A 2 i 2
TR ; S(b)IRIE RS M BRI SE 35205, ZHAIA L
R I8 R M A ST B (o) AR BRI SE i L Tl R R 28
5.46 255 67 TR Z 45 AT

AL F Ay KRB By 2 i i

Number of shares in Approximate percentage

Number of shares in which interested under Total of the total number
which interested physically settled equity number of issued shares of
Name Capacity (other than under derivatives of shares the Company
) equity derivatives) B
4= SF e e I E ARIRIR R4/ e aags NEICHEA TR
fpilieien HERR AR B St RN
[EPi=d
GUO Xia Beneficial owner
E9=] 153 75PN 114,701,941 9,150,000 123,851,941 12.44%
(note 1)
Interest in a controlled corporation
A mI RS 590,716,637 590,716,637 59.35%
(note 2)
SONG Xuemei Beneficial owner
REME {5 2PN 6,500 250,000 256,500 0.03%
(note 1)
SU Yi Beneficial owner
R {5 Z=DN - 220,000 220,000 0.02%
(note 1)
NI Binhui Beneficial owner
{5 BTN 100,000 - 100,000 0.01%

Note 1: These Shares represent the share options granted by the
Company under the Share option Scheme. For details,
please refer to the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below.

Note 2: According to information available to the Company,

349,368,873 Shares were beneficially owned by Winsland

Agents Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. GUO

Xia. 91,915,181 Shares were beneficially owned by Bright

Excel Assets Limited, a company wholly owned by

Venturepharm Holdings Inc., approximately 49.00% of its

shares were held Winsland Agents Limited and approximately

47.63% were held by Mr. GUO Xia. 149,432,583 Shares

were beneficially owned by Venturepharm Holdings Inc.

As such, Mr. GUO Xia is deemed to be interested in the

above companies under the SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2020, the Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or more of

the Company’s total number of issued shares.

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
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FERR

R R 5 M BB 268 X VI R 336l 2 L E 7 B 2 1258
RO FUHER , R R D RUE ] =, RAH]
HERIE T A F BB R R e, B AA T BT
ARAERE ) 5% LA _ERERS o

TRA LN F A K ARRR B 2 1

Approximate percentage of

Name of Capacity/ Nature of Number of ordinary shares the total number of
Shareholders interests held/ interested issued shares of the Company
JBe o S/ Frf R S m NRICEA TR
Fl 2 R E LG BAGNLROEp e
Winsland Agents Limited Beneficial owner 349,368,873 35.10%
Interest in a controlled corporation 241,347,764 24.25%
(note)
Bright Excel Assets Limited Beneficial owner 91,915,181 9.23%
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. Beneficial owner 149,432,583 15.01%
Interest in a controlled corporation 91,915,181 9.23%
(note)
Winsland Agents Limited §EyU ST ZEDN 349,368,873 35.10%
Winsland Agents Limited P EI T RE RS 241,347,764 24.25%
(note)
Bright Excel Assets Limited EIEEA A 91,915,181 9.23%
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. EERHEA A 149,432,583 15.01%
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. BB AT R R 91,915,181 9.23%
(note)
Note: Btk

According to information available to the Company, 91,915,181
Shares were beneficially owned by Bright Excel Assets Limited,
a company wholly owned by Venturepharm Holdings Inc.,
approximately 49.00% of its shares were held Winsland Agents
Limited and approximately 47.63% were held by Mr. GUO Xia.
As such, Winsland Agents Limited and Venturepharm Holdings
Inc. are deemed to be interested in the Shares owned by Bright
Excel Assets Limited under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, there was no
other person who was recorded in the register of the Company as
having interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
required, pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, to be

entered in the register referred to therein.

IRIEARA TR ITER, Venturepharm Holdings Inc2¥ A A
Bright Excel Assets Limited B #i #EH 91,915,181/, Winsland Agents
Limited 5 4749.000 WA, FPE G B A 4747 .63% M1 o
K, Winsland Agents LimitedFHVenturepharm Holdings Inc £ #7%
ERAESFORFA I Bright Excel Assets Limited H B A7 A HE 2 o
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
SIGNIFICANCE

IN CONTRACTS OF

During the year ended 31 December 2020, except for the continuing
connected transactions (details of which are disclosed in the
Company’s circular dated 9 December 2019 in www.hkexnews.com)
entered into between the Group and related companies, at which
a Director of the Company, Mr. GUO Xia, has significant interests
in these companies, no other contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

INTERESTS IN

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected Transaction” and
note 27(b) to the consolidated financial statements, there is no
contract of significance between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries,
and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 30 June 2015 (the
“Adoption Date”) by the shareholders of the Company (the
“Share Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme is a share
incentive scheme and is established to recognize and acknowledge
the contributions and potential contributions which the Eligible
Participants (as defined below) have made or may make to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants
with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with
a view to motivating the Eligible Participants to utilize their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to
attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining an on-going
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long term growth of the Group.

The Eligible Participants of the Share Option Scheme are
determined taking into account the Company’s operations and
financial situation from time to time and the contributions and
potential contributions which the Eligible Participants have made
or may make to the Group, and in accordance with the rules of
the relevant stock exchange(s), the laws and regulations of the
relevant jurisdictions and the relevant provisions of the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles”).
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The Board may at its discretion grant options to the following
eligible participants (the “Eligible Participants™):

(i) any director, employee (whether full time or part time
employee), consultant or adviser of or contractor to the Group or
any entity in which any member of the Group holds any interest
(the “Invested Entity”);

(ii) any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include
any director, employee (whether full time or part time
employee), consultant or adviser of or contractor to the Group or
any Invested Entity; and

(iii) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee
(whether full time or part time employee), consultant or adviser
of or contractor to the Group or any Invested Entity.

The maximum number of Shares available for issue under the
share options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company must
not, exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the adoption date
(excluding, for this purpose, Shares issuable upon exercise of
options which have been granted but which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or any
of the
Shareholders’ approval has been obtained.

other share option schemes Company), unless

As at the date of this report, the outstanding number of Shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 78,087,166
Shares, representing approximately 7.85% of the total number of
issued Shares.

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”), the total number of securities issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to each Eligible
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.
Where any further grant of options to an Eligible Participant
would result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options granted and to be granted to such Eligible
Participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the
relevant class of securities in issue, such further grant must be
separately approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with
such Eligible Participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors at their sole
discretion, there is no requirement of a minimum period for
which an option must be held before such an option can be
exercised under the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

HK$1.00 is payable by each Eligible Participant to the Company
on acceptance of an offer of an option, which shall be paid within
21 days from the offer date.
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The subscription price must be at least the highest of: (a) the
closing price of a Share as stated in the daily quotations sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant which must be a business
day; and (b) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as
shown on the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (c¢) the nominal value of a Share.

The Share Option Scheme shall commence on the date it
becomes unconditional and shall continue in force until the tenth
anniversary of such date.
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Number of share options
SR
Name or Exercise Balanceas | Granted | Exercised | Lapsed Cancelled
category Price at | January | during the | duringthe |duringthe | duringthe | Balance as at31
of grantees (Hk$) | Date of grant Exercisable period 2020 Year Year Year Year December 2020
ZHLH 5 e | myo AT AR AR | AT | ARdpdon | AEREE | oo
sy s —A—H +=H=4—H
Directors
EH
GUO Xia 30 June 2015 Note
1951 0.45 2015-06-30 [ 9,150,000 9,150,000
SONG Xuemei 7 April 2009 Note
;i(’?:i(? 5 0.45 2009-04-07 FhE 500,000 250,000 250,000
SUYi 30 June 2015 Note
i 0.45 2015-06-30 F 220,000 220,000
NI Binhui 30 June 2015 Note
R 0451 2015-06-30 sk 100,000 100,000
Employees of the Group
ER
In aggregate 30 June 2015 Note
e 045 | 2015-06.30 [ 3,520,000 2,330,000 | 60,000 1,130,000
Total
pren 13,490,000 2,580,000 | 60,000 10,850,000
Note: B 7 -

These options are under the Share Option Scheme. The options
may not be exercised within one year from 30 June 2015. The
Options vested (i) to the extent of a maximum of 40% of the
offered shares on 30 June 2016; (ii) to the extent of a maximum of
70% of the offered shares on 30 June 2017; and (iii) to extent of all
offered shares on 30 June 2018.
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DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURES

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of

shares in the Company or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year had the Directors
and the Chief Executive (including their spouses and children under
18 years of age) any interest in, or been granted, or exercised any
rights to subscribe for the shares (or warrants or debentures, as
applicable) of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the SFO).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or the substantial
shareholders of the Company and their respective close associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the Year and up to date of this report, there was or
is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of
the directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or any of its subsidiaries (if made by the Company).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company had, together with the
management and external auditor of the Company, reviewed the
accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors as at the date of this report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
GEM Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation for independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The independent

non-executive Directors have confirmed that they are independent.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 84.54% of the Group’s sales. The largest customer
accounted for approximately 33.21% of the sales of the Group.

During the Year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 67.86% of the Group’s cost of service. The largest
supplier accounted for approximately 43.47% of the cost of the
service of the Group.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates, or any
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns 5% or
more of the issued Shares) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s
five largest customers or suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, a number of the connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions between the Company and the
related companies are also disclosed according to the requirements of
chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The details of connected
transaction and continuing connected transactions have been
contained in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 20 November 2018, the service agreement entered between the
Company and Venturepharma Group (China) Corp. (the “Connected
Customer”) was renewed (the “Service Agreement”). Pursuant to the
Service Agreement, the Company agreed to provide services,
including post launch market research, medical sciences service and
medical market service (the “Services”), through entity(ies) being
member of the Group which provides the services (the “Service
Provider”) to the subsidiaries of the Connected Customer within the
PRC (the “Connected Customer Subsidiaries”). Mr. GUO Xia, an
executive Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company,
was a controlling shareholder of the Connected Customer.
Accordingly, the Connected Customer was a connected person of the
Company and the transaction contemplated under the Service
Agreement constituted a continuing connected transaction of the

Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

The services commenced from 27 December 2019, the date of the
independent shareholders’ approval of the Service Agreement, up to
and inclusive on 31 December 2021. The annual caps of the
continuing connected transaction for the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2020 and the year ending 31 December 2021 are
RMB15,000,000, RMB43,000,000 and  RMBS55,000,000
respectively.
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The Group possesses relevant capability to provide the Services. The
Services provided by Service Provider is necessary to Connected
Customer Subsidiaries and the cooperation between the Group and
Connected Customer Subsidiaries will be favourable for the Group to
further expand its recognition in the field and enhance its operation in
terms of technical knowhow and will provide stability in terms of

revenue to the Group.

The terms of the service agreement were determined after arm’s
length negotiations between the Company and the Connected
Customer. The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) consider that the terms of the Service Agreement are on
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group, fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company, after they
reviewed the connected transactions shown in note 27 to consolidated
financial statements, considered that during the Year, such connected
transactions are:

(I)Related to the general and normal business of the Company;

(2)Entered into in accordance with the terms of the general
agreement or in terms of the terms of the agreement between the
Company and the independent third party; and

(3)The terms of the agreement concluded are fair and reasonable in

terms of the owners of the group.

During the Year, the actual amounts of the continuing connected
transactions paid under the agreements did not exceed the respective
aggregate annual cap as previously disclosed in the circular and the

announcements of the Company.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2020 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
Board confirms that the auditor has issued an unqualified letter
confirming the matters in accordance with Rule 20.54 of the GEM
Listing Rules in respect of the Group’s continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2020 as being in order.
Copy of the said letter has been provided to the Stock Exchange.
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For details of the transaction, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 20 November 2018, 27 December 2018, 23
September 2019, 29 November 2019 and 27 December 2019 and the
Company’s circular dated 9 December 2019.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the Year are
set out in note 27(b) to the consolidated financial statements of this
report.

The related party transaction as disclosed in note 27(b) to the
consolidated financial statements of this report constituted
non-exempt continuing connected transactions under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules and accordingly are subject to the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The related party transactions as disclosed in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements of this report constituted exempt
continuing connected transaction under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules and accordingly are exempted from the disclosure

requirements in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The related party transactions as disclosed in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements of this report are not regarded as
connected transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into by the Group or
existed during the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

In the opinion of the Directors, save as disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report which on pages 28 to 46 of this report, the
Company has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules during the Year.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited. A resolution will be submitted to the
annual general meeting of the Company to appoint Zhonghui Anda
CPA Limited as the auditor of the Company.

Following the resignation of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as
auditor of the Company on 20 December 2018, Cheng & Cheng
Limited was appointed as the auditor of the Company to fill the
vacancy.

Following the resignation of Cheng & Cheng Limited as auditor of
the Company on 16 April 2019, Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited was
appointed as the auditor of the Company to fill the vacancy.

On behalf of the Board

Chairman
GUO Xia

Beijing, the PRC, 22 March 2021
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. The principles adopted by the Company
emphasis a quality board, transparency and accountability to
shareholders. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied
with the Code for the year ended 31 December 2020, with the

exception for the following deviations:

Under code provision A.2.1, the responsibilities between chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated. However, the chief
executive officer of the Company has not yet been appointed.
Currently, the day-to-day management of the Company’s business is
handled by the executive directors and senior management, who take
the responsibility to run the Group’s business and to implement the
Group’s strategy so as to achieve the overall commercial objectives

of the Company.

Under the code provision E.1.2, the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting. He should also invite the chairman
of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other committees (as
appropriate) to attend. During the Year, the annual general meeting of
the Company was held on 18 June 2020 (the “AGM”), Mr. GUO Xia
(chairman of the Board) did not attend the said AGM to answer
questions of the shareholders of the Company due to other prior
business engagements. However, Mr. GUO Xia has appointed the
other attended Director, Dr. SONG Xuemei, as his representative at
the said meeting to answer questions of the shareholders of the
Company. The Company will put its most effort in encouraging and
ensuring the Directors including executive and non-executive

Directors to attend the general meetings in the future.
RULE 5.05(1) OF THE GEM LISTING RULES

Under Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the board of directors
of a listed issuer must include at least three independent

non-executive Directors.

The Company has fulfilled the requirement on the number of
independent non-executive directors of the Company as required
under Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules.

28 CHINA HEALTH GROUP INC.

FRERBE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EFAAZEERER TR

A R Z ARG W LT FA R SE AR L T RLRIBR R+ Tz
A SEE G WL B PR A A s RS TApRI ) o K
A EIFRAN 2 R S R SR RO B
BN, #RERaRA: 82X "FF+-H=1+"H
IR, Anwl—HESy T, LT R RERRAD:

RIEHER A 200, ERRMEEITE Z H B ES
Bl. A, ZAFEFERTEMAMTH. HiT, AF%H
HH W EFHEBPTERFNRREREAT, JUTERHNR
AR PR B B AR I SE TN Bt A [ B, LATE B E]
YRR R 26 H A

IR CATEY FE120K, TS TN R RO
. fEESEE B ReErEazEe 1
THOLIAE) WL . FX, AR _F ZRER]
T/NRBITEEBRRE ( “FEBOLRE” ) , #2%
4 (ERR) BRANK LRREBORE, PUE A w5
SRR Ho A oG BT SEBS M de A . R, SRR ek DAy
75— R R M A R AR iR et
MR, [APE A RIBCR BT . 2wl fRoR S S
e PR L B T 8 SR AR T A Y Y 2 AR R R
L ON-R

GEM_ETTRBISE5.05(1) %
GEM_ETTIRIIEES.05 (1) Bz, Eisfr A EREg Lo
JAELEEZ /D = AT AR T R .

AFIEES] GISEHR TR 855.05 (1) HEER AT
T AT B A BEOR



FREBBE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RULE 5.28 OF THE GEM LISTING RULES

Under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, every listed issuer must
establish an audit committee comprising non-executive directors

only. The audit committee must comprise a minimum of 3 members.

The Company has fulfilled the requirement on the number of members
of the audit committee as required under Rule 5.28 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company also had made specific enquiry of all Directors
and the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors during the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS EHE

The overall governance structure of the Company is set out below: N TR PRAS RIS

The Board
R
Chairman appointed by the Board
M HE RN
2 Executive Directors
oL AT
1 Non-Executive Director
L BT
3 Independent Non—Executive Directors

SREN AR T R

Audit Committee Nomination Committee

Remuneration Committee

HEHTEE P TEE HiZ B
QIU Rui (Chairman) NI Binhui (Chairman) ZHEN Ling (Chairman)
e (F) MR () A (R
ZHEN Ling GUO Xia GUO Xia
Wi 9 FE
NI Binhui QIU Rui QIU Rui
i s s
ZHEN Ling NI Binhui
Tidg i

The Board members during the Year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:
GUO Xia (Chairman)
SONG Xuemei

Non-executive Director:
SUYi

Independent Non-executive Directors:
QIU Rui

NI Binhui

ZHEN Ling

There are no relationships (including financial, business, family

or other material or relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of the
management of the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing shareholders value.
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The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval
and monitoring of the Group's overall strategies and policies;
approval of annual budgets and business plans; evaluating the
performance of the Group; and oversight of management. One of
the important roles of the Chairman is to provide leadership to
the Board to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Group. All Directors have been consulted about any matters
proposed for inclusion in the agenda. With the support of
Executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman
seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receives adequate and reliable

information in a timely manner.

Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in advance to
give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Four regular Board
meetings at approximately quarterly intervals have been
scheduled for 2020. The Directors can attend meetings in persons
or through other means of electronic communication in

accordance with the Articles.

Board papers are circulated not less than three days before the
Board meetings to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised at the Board meetings. The
Company Secretary shall attend all regular Board meetings to
advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance,
accounting and financial matters when necessary. Directors shall
have full access to information of the Group and are able to
obtain independent professional advice whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in establishing the meeting agenda, and each Director
may request inclusion of items in the agenda. Minutes of the
board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open

for inspection by Directors.

Each of Mr. Guo and Dr. Song has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing
on 31 December 2020. Mr. Su has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing
on 18 May 2019. Dr. Ni has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing on 31
March 2021. Mr. Qiu has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of 3 years commencing on 12 February
2021. Mr. Zhen has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of 3 years commencing on 6 July 2021. Each
Director is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company. Pursuant to the terms of
each of their service agreements, each Director except Dr. Song
is not entitled to any director’s fee. The details of emolument of
Dr. Song are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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During the Year, five Board meetings and one general meeting
were held. The attendance records of the aforementioned

meetings are set out below:
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WE-E NETZAST—HILT=fA, EHEER
(T R P T o L s T

Attendance of individual directors at
board meetings during the Year.

ENEH S EFEE BN
Attendance no.  Attendance rate
HH R AL HiE 2R
Executive Directors HITESR
GUO Xia e 4/5 80%
SONG Xuemei REM 5/5 100%
Non-executive Director FHTEE
SU Yi kR 4/5 80%
Independent Non-executive Directors B TESE
QIU Rui iR 4/5 80%
NI Binhui {5 Hi 4/5 80%
ZHEN Ling B4 3/5 60%
Attendance of individual directors at
general meetings during the Year
A L N T
Attendance no.  Attendance rate
Executive Directors HfTEH
GUO Xia Y] 0/1 0%
SONG Xuemei ey 1/1 100%
Non-executive Director FHFEE
SU Yi R 1/1 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors B Ak TR
QIU Rui iR 0/1 0%
NI Binhui AL 1/1 100%
ZHEN Ling U 0/1 0%

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation for independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Independent
have confirmed that they are

Non-executive Directors

independent.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board, and ensures that all keys and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and

constructive manner.

Currently, the Company does not have Chief Executive Officer.
The day-to-day management of the Company's business is
handled by the executive directors, who take the responsibility to
run the Group's business and to implement the Group's strategy so
as to achieve the overall commercial objectives of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development during the Year. The Company has also continuously
updated Directors on the latest developments regarding the GEM
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements, to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

During the Year, the Directors participated in the continuous
professional developments in relation to regulatory update, the
duties and responsibility of the Directors and the business of the

Group in the following manners:
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee,
to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules 5.28 to 5.33. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are (a) to review the Group’s annual reports,
interim reports and quarterly reports (b) to discuss and review
with the audit of the Company on the scope and findings of the
audit; and (c) to supervise the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
provide advice and comments to the Board.

During the Year and up to the date of this announcement, the
members of the Audit Committee have been and are:

QIU Rui (Chairman)
NI Binhui
ZHEN Ling

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed, assessed and
commented on the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2019, the unaudited consolidated
financial statements for the three months ended 31 March 2020,
six months ended 30 June 2020 and nine months ended 30
September 2020, respectively. It has also reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
and internal audit functions of the Group, the continuing
connected transactions and the policy on anti-money laundering
and counter-terrorist financing. The preparation of the
consolidated results is in compliance with applicable accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Company and the
requirements of the Stock Exchange, and adequate disclosure has

been made.

The Group’s unaudited consolidated quarterly, interim results and
audited consolidated annual results for the Year have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate

disclosures have been made.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee held [four] meetings. The

attendance records of the Audit Committee meetings are set out
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R, R RRERTT (MR EE. Tt AeEERN
R RCER I T

below:

Attendance no.  Attendance rate
Members A=
QIU Rui (Chairman) M (B 4/4 100%
NI Binhui {5 Mo NEE 4/4 100%
ZHEN Ling LRy 3/4 75%
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZEG
The Company has established a nomination committee (the RARCHIIRAZEEE, W8 RGEM F ik HIE T

“Nomination Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of
the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition by reference to the board diversity policy (including
but not limited to the gender, skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.
The Nomination Committee is chaired by an independent
non-executive Director. The Nomination Committee comprises a
majority of independent non-executive Directors.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the members of

the Nomination Committee have been and are:

NI Binhui (Chairman)
GUO Xia

QIU Rui

ZHEN Ling

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting.
The attendance records of the Nomination Committee meeting is
set out below:
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NI Binhui (Chairman) U A e 1/1 100%
GUO Xia HE 1/1 100%
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ZHEN Ling Wi /1 100%
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
setting out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and
delegated certain duties under the Policy to the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee and the Board had also
reviewed on 10 March 2020 the structure of the Board and is of
the opinion the Board consisted of members with different
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills and knowledge, which met the

requirements under the terms of the Policy.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.

The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the Board
composition on behalf of the Board and recommends the
appointment of new Directors, taking into account a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, industry and regional experience, and length
of service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,

having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVES

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service and any other factors that the
Board may consider relevant and applicable from time to time.
The Company will also take into consideration factors based on
the Company’s business model and specific needs from time to
time in determining the optimum composition of the Board. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates may bring to the Board. The Board’s
composition (including gender, age, length of service) will be
disclosed in the corporate governance report of the Company (the
“CG Report”) in its annual report.

MONITORING AND REPORTING
The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the CG

Report, on the Board’s composition under diversified perspectives,
and monitor the implementation of this Policy.
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DIRECTOR’S NOMINATION POLICY
Objectives

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable candidates to
the Board for it to consider and make recommendations to
shareholders for election as Directors at general meetings or

appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

The Nomination Committee may, as it considers appropriate,
nominate a number of candidates more than the number of
directors to be appointed or re-appointed at a general meeting, or

the number of casual vacancies to be filled.

The Nomination Committee shall ensure the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

e character and integrity;

o qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

o accomplishment and experience in the business from time to
time conducted, engaged in or invested in by any member of

the Group;
o commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

o requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with reference to
the independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing
Rules;

o Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives adopted
by the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the
Board; and

e such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business. These factors are for reference only, and not meant
to be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee
has the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.
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Rigorous review is applied to assessing the continuing
independence of Directors having served for over 9 consecutive
years, with attention to ensuring that they remain independent in
character and judgement, and continue to present an objective
and constructive challenge to the assumptions and viewpoints
presented by the management and the Board.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information in a prescribed form, together with their
written consent to be appointed as Directors and to the public
disclosure of their personal data on any documents or the relevant
websites for the purpose of or in relation to their standing for
election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to provide
additional information and documents, if considered necessary.

Nomination Procedures

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval.
For proposing candidates to stand for election at a general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the Board
for its consideration and recommendation. The Board shall have the
ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of Directors.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of new director and the biographical information (or
relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee shall rank them by order of preference
based on the needs of the Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as
a director at the general meeting of the Company pursuant to its
constitutional documents, the Nomination Committee shall
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out above to
determine whether such candidate is qualified for directorship
and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall make recommendation to shareholders in respect of
the proposed election of director at the general meeting.

Re-election of Directors at General Meetings

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution
and service to the Company of the retiring director including
his/her attendance of Board meetings and, where applicable,
general meetings, and the level of participation and performance
on the Board.
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The Nomination Committee shall also review and determine
whether the retiring director continues to meet the criteria as set

out above.
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) according to the relevant provisions
of the GEM Listing Rules with written terms of reference. Its
primary duties are (a) to make recommendation to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management; (b) to review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (c) to determine the
remuneration packages on individual executive Directors and
senior management; and (d) to make recommendations to the

Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration committee is formed by an executive director
and three independent non-executive directors.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the members of

the Remuneration Committee have been and are:

ZHEN Ling
GUO Xia
QIU Rui
NI Binhui

During the Year, one meeting was held by the Remuneration
Committee to discuss and review the remuneration policies of the
Company, to review and make recommendations with respect to
the remuneration of Board members for approval by the Board
and to made recommendations with respect to the remuneration
of the newly appointed Directors during the year for approval by
the Board. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the
operation model where it performs an advisory role to the Board,
with the Board retaining the final authority to approve the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management. The attendance of member at Remuneration

Committee meeting during the Year is set out below:
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NI Binhui T 1/1 100%
QIU Rui st 1/1 100%
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Further particulars relating to Directors’ emoluments and the five
highest paid individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the

consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THEIR
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the
financial statements are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of
the Group.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the Independent

Auditor’s Report on pages 47 to 50.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

According to code provision D.3 of the Code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Company in accordance with the written terms of reference
adopted by the Board on 28 December 2020. The Board has the
following duties and responsibilities for performing the corporate
governance duties of the Company:

¢ to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

¢ to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

* to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

¢ to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

e to review the Group’s compliance with the corporate
governance code as set out in the GEM Listing Rules and
disclosure in the corporate governance report in annual report of

the Company.
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During the Year, the Board held two meetings to review the
policies and practices of the Company relating to the Code.
Details of the attendance of the related meetings of the Board are
as follow:
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Attendance no.  Attendance rate

R L H AR
Executive Directors THE
GUO Xia (Chairman) #BE () 212 100%
SONG Xuemei RE 212 100%
Non-executive Director JEITHE S
SU Yi B 2/2 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors B AERITEF
QIU Rui s 2/2 100%
NI Binhui fiph 212 100%
ZHEN Ling T 12 50%
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL PR B B B
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group has a sound 2 5 & £ 20l (R AN 42 3] 1) JRL G/ B0 A P 3 B s R e A M 4
and effective risk management and internal control system. The M AR . ALEBI AR B L E LR AR 2

Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities and
has implemented a practical and effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
a sound cash management system and periodic review of the
Group’s operation and performance by the Audit Committee and
the Board. During the Year, the Company engaged an external
independent consultant to conduct a review on the internal
control system of the Group. The risk management and internal
control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Board to
ensure it is effective. The Board is satisfied that, based on
information furnished to it and on its own observations, the
present risk management and internal control system of the
Group are satisfactory. The Board is of the view that the system
of risk management and internal control adopted for this Year is
sound and effective. The Group does not have an internal audit
function and the Board is of the view that there is currently no
need for the Group to have this function. The situation will be
reviewed from time to time. The risk management and internal
control systems are designed to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operating systems or in achievement

of the Group’s business objectives.
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PROCESS USED TO IDENTIFY, EVALUATE AND
MANAGE SIGNIFICANT RISKS

During the process of risk assessment, the Audit Committee
identifies the risk of the Group and deciding on the risk levels and
the Board shall assess and determine the nature and extent of the
risks that are acceptable to the Group when achieving its strategic
objectives. Taking into consideration the risk response, i.e. the
necessary risk mitigating measures, the relevant departments and
business units shall be assigned to implement the risk
management solutions in accordance with their respective roles
and responsibilities. The identified risk together with the risk
response will be recorded at the risk register and subject to the
Board’s oversight.

MAIN FEATURES OF RISK
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

MANAGEMENT AND

The key elements of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group include the establishment of a risk register
to keep track of and record identified risks, the assessment and
evaluation of risks, the development and continuous updating of
responsive procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control

procedures to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk assessment approach is adopted by the Group for
identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that affect the
achievement of its objectives. The judgement of the risk is mainly
determined in accordance with the likelihood of occurrence and
consequence of occurrence of the risk, which can be categorised
into 3 classes, classifying the degree of risk impact as: Minor (1),
Moderate (2) and Significant (3), and the probability of
occurrence of risk as: Unlikely (1), Possible (2) and Likely (3).
The risk degrees reflect the level of management’s attention and
risk treatment effort required.

PROCESS USED TO REVIEW THE EFFECTIVENESS OF
THE RISK MANAGEMENT & INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS AND TO RESOLVE MATERIAL INTERNAL
CONTROL DEFECTS

In view of the Company’s business and scale of operations, and
in order to adopt the most cost-effective method of conducting
periodic reviews of the Group’s internal controls. During the
year, the Company engaged an external independent consultant
to conduct a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems in accordance with the

requirements under Code Provision C.2 of the Code.
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The Board and Audit Committee were satisfied that there had
been no major deficiency noted in the areas of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems being reviewed after
implementation of recommendations of the internal control
defects reported by the external independent consultant.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR THE
HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Board has established a policy for handling and dissemination
of inside information (the “Inside Information Policy”). The
Inside Information Policy stipulates the obligations of the Group,
restriction on sharing non-public information, handling of rumours,
unintentional selective disclosure, exemptions and statutory waiver
to the disclosure of inside information, external communication
guidelines and compliance and reporting procedures. Management
of the Company takes all reasonable measures from time to time
to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent breach of any
disclosure obligations. Employees are required to promptly bring
any possible leakage or divulgence of inside information to the
attention of the Senior Management, or their delegates, who will
notify the Board timely and accordingly, in which case and in the
event that there is evidence of material violation of the Inside
Information Policy, the Board will decide, or designate
appropriate persons to decide the course of actions for rectifying
the problem and avoiding recurrence.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The responsibility statement of external auditor of the Company,
Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited about their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 47 to 50. During the
Year, auditor’s remuneration for audit services was approximately
RMB780,000. Save as disclosed above, there was no other
non-audit services assignment undertaken by the external auditor
during the Year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary’)
is responsible for distributing detailed documents to the Directors
prior to the Board meetings to ensure that the Directors are able
to make informed decisions regarding the matters discussed in
the meetings. And all Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that
the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations,
are followed. The company secretary , Ms. LAM Yuen Ling Eva,
is delegated by an external service provider. The external service
provider’s primary contact person at the Company is the financial
controller of the Company from time to time. Ms. Lam is a fellow of
both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly The Institute of

Chartered Secretaries and Administrators).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year
and at the place as may be determined by the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders may convene an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company according to the provisions as set out in the Articles
and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. A Special
General Meeting (“SGM”) can be convened by a written request
signed by shareholders of the Company, stating the objects of the
meeting and deposited at the Company’s head office at Unit B,
19/F, Times Media Centre, 133 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
BY SHAREHOLDERS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

The procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at an
annual general meeting or SGM include a written notice of those
proposals being submitted by shareholders, addressed to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Unit B, 19/F, Times Media Centre, 133 Wanchai
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The detailed procedures vary
according to whether the proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution or a special resolution, or whether the proposal relates
to the election of a person other than a Director of the Company
as a director. The procedures for shareholders to convene and put
forward proposals at an annual general meeting or SGM
(including election of a person other than a Director of the
Company as a director) are available on the Company’s website
or on request to the Company Secretary.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING SHAREHOLDERS’
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit B,
19/F, Times Media Centre, 133 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong

Kong or send email to ir@venturepharm.net.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
annual general meeting or SGM.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company uses a number of formal communications channels
to account to shareholders and investors for the performance of
the Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly,
interim and annual reports; (ii) the annual general meeting or
SGM providing a forum for shareholders of the Company to raise
comments and exchanging views with the Board; (iii) key
information of the Group available on the website of the
Company; (iv) the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong
serving the shareholders in respect of all share registration
matters; and (v) corporate information and the Articles are made

available on the Company’s website.

A Shareholder’s Communication Policy was adopted by the
Board aiming at providing the shareholders and potential
investors with ready and timely access to balanced and

understandable information of the Company.

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The
Board is committed to providing clear, detailed, timely manner
and on a regular basis information of the Group to shareholders
through the publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports

and/or dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing Shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public.

Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit B,
19/F, Times Media Centre, 133 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

During the Year, there was no amendment on the constitutional

document of the Company.
DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy on 28
December 2020 (the “Dividend Policy”). The Dividend Policy
aims at enhancing transparency of the Company and facilitating the
Shareholders and investors to make informed investment decisions

relating to the Company.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Board may consider declaring
and paying dividends to the Shareholders out of the Company’s
distributable funds. Such declaration and payment of dividends
shall remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board,

subject to the requirements of all applicable laws and the Articles.
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The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout
ratio. In deciding whether to propose or declare a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount and means of payment, the
Board shall take into account the following factors of the Group,
among others:

(a) financial results;

(b) cash flow situation;

(c) future operations and earnings;

(d) capital requirements and expenditure plans;

(e) interest of shareholders;

(f) any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

(g) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Group and the
conditions and factors as set out above, dividends may/may not
be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial year or
period as:

1. interim dividend;

2. final dividend;

3. special dividend; and

4. any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem appropriate.

The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or
scrip or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.

The Board shall endeavor to strike a balance between providing
return to the Shareholders through the payment of dividends
whilst retaining adequate reserves as the Group’s working capital
and for the Group’s future growth. There can be no assurance that
dividends will be proposed, declared or paid by the Company in
any particular amount at any time or from time to time.

The Board will review from time to time the Dividend Policy and
may exercise at its absolute and sole discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as the Board
deems fit and necessary.
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ZHONGHUI

Independent auditor's report
To the shareholders of China Health Group Inc.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Health Group Inc. and its subsidiaries (together the “Company”)
set out on pages 51 to 97, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards(“HKFSs”)issued by the Hong Kong Institude of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”™)
properly prepared in

and have been
compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statement section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of trade and bills receivables for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit
because the balances of trade and bills receivables of
approximately RMB86,056,000 as at 31 December 2020 are
material to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the
Group’s impairment test involves application of judgement and
is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting credit limits
and credit periods to customers;

- Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction history

with the customers;
- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;
- Assessing aging of the debts;
- Assessing creditworthiness of the customers;
- Checking subsequent settlements from the customers; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for trade and bills

receivables is supported by the available evidence.
OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information
is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we will not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA’s
website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standar
ds/auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Fong Tak Ching

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P0O6353
Hong Kong, 22 March 2021

50 CHINA HEALTH GROUP INC.

B REHREE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

A BN TG O AL A AR — D
A G EHIA G

=

21

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standar
ds/auditing-assurance/auditre/

RS R PR A o i o 70

H B 232 7 RIS i

WEEEE

Jy flfe

HRIEH

B2 75 4% P06353

wE, —F %A+ _"H



RERm R R M E E N mA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased
to announce the audited consolidated results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2020 together with the comparative audited figures for
the year ended 31 December 2019 as follows:
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RAFIESRG ( [EHG ) WRAMA L 7 R EA
T O(BRE TALHE ) ) BE-Z-FE+HA=1+—"H
SR (TR ) ZREMGAES, EREE T
NE+F A= H IR EE 2 S S

REVENUE
BREA

Cost of services

i p A

Other income

oAb

Administrative expenses
T

Staff costs

BTRA

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
£l

Finance costs

e

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

BNt

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

BRAT R A

Income tax

KETA

PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR
AR [ FUA AR A AR AR

PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
A B E A AR A B AR AR

- OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
- AT RS

EARNINGS PER SHARE (RMB cents)
=3l

- Basic

- AR

- Djluted

The notes on pages 55 to 97 form part of these financial statements.

EB55EEOTH 2 A P B ORI R ) A B AR — T

2020 2019
CECE “EJUAE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Btk NRHETTT NRHETIT
5 83,063 63,216
(16,104) (9,751)

6 303 32
(3,600) (6,097)

(8,288) (14,774)

55,374 32,626

7(a) (163) (172)
29 15,585 -
7 70,796 32,454
10 (10,146) (4,662)
60,650 27,792

60,650 27,792

60,650 27,792

11 A BEEAL A B
6.10 2.80

6.08 2.80

T EEREBEEFRA AL
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(AN
HER

AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Note 2020 2019
B “ECE “EJUE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#ETIC AREETIC
NON-CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Property, plant and equipment ENN U] 13 1,751 2,172
Right-of-use assets [idjilia= iz 14 - 2,595
1,751 4,767
CURRENT ASSETS hEgE
Investments at fair value through profit or loss UnnEEsE HETR NS RGN SMEE 16 12,160 -
Contract costs Al A 17 24,800 25,176
Trade and bills receivables B IAGIOR R i 18 86,056 58,557
Trade deposit paid TR 19 1,800 1,800
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TR GO 20 17,135 12,473
Cash and cash equivalents B R EY 16,193 8,459
158,144 106,465
CURRENT LIABILITIES Niig=Lit
Trade payables, other payables and accrued charges & 5 HERIFIR, Hofd AT Eoe i et 2 21 18,594 38,006
Contract liabilities BRARK 17 1,161 52
Lease liabilities HEAH 22 - 88
Tax payable VERRET 19,965 12,076
Bank borrowings ATER 23 1,500 1,500
41,220 51,722
NET CURRENT ASSETS FREEE 116,924 54,743
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ~ $&EBHEA & 118,675 59,510
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRIAK
Lease liabilities FHE AR 22 - 2,530
- 2,530
NET ASSETS BEE 118,675 56,980
EQUITY 2
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ AATIHERSHAEL R Lz
Issued capital A 24 88,906 88,673
Reserves filiths 24 29,769 (31,693)
Total equity ERAT 118,675 56,980

The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 97 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on 22 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

GUO Xia
2
Director

The notes on pages 55 to 97 form part of these financial statements.

EB55EEOTH 2 B PR B HURMIRE A AL — )
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

2020F EHR &

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
BE_E_FE+-A=1+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Attributable to owners of the Company

AN TIHEA MR
Issued Share Share-based Special Capital Statutory Statutory enterprise  Accumulated Total
capital  premium s payment reserve «  reserve  reserve # reserve &  expansionfund «  losses & equity
B BeAmE B FeRlfh GG REAH HERE Rt At
BZRL- BRES
RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETIC ARWETT  ARMTIT  ARMTIC ARKTIC AR®ETIT NGNS ARMTIE ARMTIC
At 1 January 2019
R E—NE—H—H 88,673 3,920 6,039 6,231 9,620 6,986 (92,281) 29,188
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
AR R A I 2 K - - - 27,792 27,792
Cancellation/lapse of share options
U kS B (1.026) - - 1,026
A fati
%lgl;f;lma lons - 3,118 (3.118)
7
At 31 December 2019
W E—E A= —H 88,673 2,894 6,039 6,231 12,738 6,986 (66,581) 56,980
At 1 January 2020
WoE—ZE—H—H 88,673 2,894 6,039 6,231 12,738 6,986 (66,581) 56,980
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
A B A A R AR - - - 60,650 60,650
Cancellation/Lapse of share options s o
S LB oo ]
Shares issued upon exercise of share options
SOV TR I 3 402 90 : : : 1045
?ﬁp;z?prlatlons i 6813 6313
At 31 December 2020
R EEL—H=1—H 88,906 1,402 2,273 6,039 6,231 19,551 6,986 (12,713) 118,675

* 'These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the consolidated statement of financial position.

* g LAl A R A LA & O i A (R P A B DA RS

T EEREREBEBRA AL



2020 FEHRE

2020 ANNUAL REPORT
HE_E-EF+"HA=+—HIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

IIV7- [=] }Eﬁ/}ﬁg%
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2020 2019
—EoEE o
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ETIC AR¥ETIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES KBRS
Profit before tax Loyl 70,796 32,454
Adjustments for: R
Interest expenses NS il 61 68
Bank interest income SATRLEHN (26) )
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment U= (R NN 184 1,130
Depreciation of right-of-use assets L - R 107 142
Unpaid lease liabilities RATHEAE 223 (223)
Lease interest FHEFIE 102 104
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary BT AFIRA (15,585) -
Gain on lease modification FHE R A (64) -
Interest income on financial assets held as investment R ER SN (208)
Operating profit before working capital changes EstAcuN LEiliv=e ity 55,590 33,666
Change in contract costs B AR EB A 47 (14,068)
Change in trade and bills receivables JREMSC B2 5 B MM B 8 (33,248) (17,158)
Change in trade deposits paid AT PRRE S D g - (1,000)
Change in prepayments and other receivables T O M A SR Y B (39,049) 9,292)
Change in trade payables, other payables and accrued charges  MERF& Bk, BRI HEATE ARSI 31,419 8,090
Change in contract liabilities AR AN 5,860 (315)
Cash generated/(used in) from operations R E R 4 20,619 77)
Income tax paid SIS (1,505) (408)
Net cash generated/(used in) from operating activities KEEIES/(TR) MRS ERE 19,114 (485)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEY
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WEECREE . JOps Bt - (1)
Net cash outflow arising from disposal of subsidaries S BT A AR B R 47) -
Purchases of investments at fair value through profit or loss WA LI E R H RSB ARG M SREE  (12.160) -
Bank interest received HERIISEION 26 9
Interest received from financial assets held as investment BB EEREER B 208 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities WEER () frEBL s B (11,973) 8
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BETEE
New borrowings AR T EER 1,500 1,500
Repayment of loans TRIESA TR (1,500) (1,500)
Interest paid SUAFLE (61) (68)
Proceeds from issue of shares BTk \Fﬁ 1,045 -
Repayment of lease liabilities R E AR (391) -
Net cash generated/(used in) from financing activities RS TEE R/ ()2 BieyR s 593 (68)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND R& MBS FEWAEEM W) 7,734 (545)
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year SERIHS M4 SEY) 8,459 9,004
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ERBERBESEY 16,193 8,459

Note:

Liabilities arising from financing activities include bank

borrowings and lease liabilities. No reconciliation of liabilities

Bt

arising from financing activities as, besides of above cash flow  EVHEIE A 198 I bEEE)
movements, there are no other changes or movements for those
liabilities during the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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NOTES 70 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China Health Group Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office is P.O. Box
31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands and its principal place of
business is at Building 17, Jianwai SOHO, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on 1 January 2020. HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; Hong Kong Accounting
Standards("HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of these
new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to
the Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
financial statements and amounts reported for the current year and

prior years.

The Company has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Company has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new HKFRSs
would have a material impact on its results of operations and

financial position.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated. RMB is the
functional currency of the Company and the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors to
exercise its judgements in the process of applying the accounting
policies. The areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the

Group is set out below:
Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s

returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to
determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a

loss of control represents the difference between

(1) the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary ;and

(ii) the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any

related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.
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Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
if this

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

non-controlling shareholders even results in the

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”).

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity's financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the end
of each reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this

translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. When a gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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(¢) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that
have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s

presentation currency as follows:

(i)  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that

statement of financial position;

(ii) Income and expenses are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

(iii) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the

foreign currency translation reserve.
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in
profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 10 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction
and plant and machinery pending installation, and is stated at cost
less any impairment losses. Depreciation begins when the
relevant assets are available for use.

Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding
lease liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by the
Group. Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use

assets is calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter

of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The principal annual rates are as follows:

Buildings over the lease term of 1 to 20 years

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments
prepaid, initial direct costs and the restoration costs. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the lease payments
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate
can be determined, or otherwise the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.
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Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are
leases with an initial lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets are assets of value below US$5,000 (approximately
equivalent to HK$39,000).

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained control
on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially recognised
at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in
the case of investments at fair value through profit or loss.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
investments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following
category:

Financial assets at amortised cost; and

Investments at fair value through profit or loss
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Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the following
conditions:

(a) the assets are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

(b) the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less loss allowance for expected credit
losses.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified under this category if they do not
meet the conditions to be measured at amortised cost and the
conditions of debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is not held for trading as at fair value through

other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising from
changes in fair values recognised in profit or loss. The fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss are net of any interest
income and dividend income. Interest income and dividend

income are recognised in profit or loss.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses
on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are
the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of

a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of that financial instrument (“life time
expected credit losses”) for trade receivables or if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly since

initial recognition.
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If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to the
portion of life time expected credit losses that represents the
expected credit losses that result from default events on that
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required
amount is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or

loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included

as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer with reference to the customary business
practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. For a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised product or service
exceeds one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a

significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to a
customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws that
apply to that contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied
over time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is

satisfied over time if:

() the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the

benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(¢) the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of

the product or service.

Other income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave

as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.
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Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not

recognised until the time of leave.
(b) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes
which are available to all employees. Contributions to the
schemes by the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents contributions
payable by the Group to the funds.

(¢) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when the Group recognises restructuring costs and involves
the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled payments to certain employees.
Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair
value (excluding the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair
value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will
eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based

vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.
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All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.

(b) An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (Which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(V) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

(Vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management personnel

of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(Vi) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.
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Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the Group’s various
lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of productions processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

The Group operates in a single segment and no segmental

analysis is presented.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except
receivables to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of

the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of amortisation or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the

reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when material.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.
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(a) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
based on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and other
receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the actual result is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of the trade and other receivables and doubtful
debt expenses in the year in which such estimate has been

changed.

(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is determined with reference to the fair
value less costs of disposal. Where the fair value less costs of
disposal are less than expected or there are unfavourable events
and change in facts and circumstance which result in revision of
fair value less costs of disposal, a material impairment loss may

arise.

(c) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual values
and related depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have

been abandoned or sold.

(d) Measurement of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

The Group estimated the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
based on the terms of the rental agreements and the Group's
incremental borrowing rate. Estimates are required in determining

the Group's incremental borrowing rate.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The Group is principally engaged in the provisions of clinical
research services, real-world clinical research, medical science
liaisons, medical marketing programs which aims to bridge the
gaps between the clinical and commercial phases of product
development in the PRC and its revenues are all derived in the PRC
for both years. These services are subject to similar business risks
and resources and are allocated based on the view of the whole
Group’s benefits in enhancing the value as a whole rather than on
any specific unit. The Group’s chief operating decision-maker
considers that the performance assessment of the Group should be
based on the profit before taxation of the Group as a whole.
Therefore, only one single segment information are disclosed
under the requirements of HKFRS 8.

The amount of each significant category of revenue is as follows:
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NOTES 70 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. AR R

AR 9310 12 IR ) 2 AR T A RS Y P o — B T
AUty o A Y T BT A R K B ST 3 N AT
JEMEHs, A A 2RI A . 5 R S T
BRORHILT , T A P S T T R 5 DA A T ) B B i i
AR R LA, AR R 1 R Ry AR ) B
BRETHI RIS R A SR M SE AR AR . AL, T HUE IR
B BB IEND 55/\98, AER A 1SEHED

o

EEER SO P SV

2020 2019
SECFE CF A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥TIT  AR¥TIT
Provision of post launch market research, PRt b R R AR
medical and medical market services (the “PM services”) B RTS8 ST R B B2 T % 82,016 55,360
Provision of contracted pharmaceutical TRAL GRS T BB IR 849 7,184
development services (the “PD services”)
Provision of contracted clinical research services (the “CR services”)  HEAbA %0 R IR 198 72
83,063 63,216
Other medical services include registration, application and testing — HABBEER AW NG S 7EM, B FE IR
services.
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers: B FEHETHA R 438 :
2020 2019
CEROEE RN
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥TIT AR¥ETIT
Major products/services R IR
Provision of PM services PR LT R B R AR BRRAF SR
PEEIBA AN BRETT I IRHs 82,016 55,360
Provision of PD services PR G 4R ) BB I 849 7,784
Provision of CR services FRALG L TG RO 55 I 198 72
Total CEil 83,063 63,216
Timing of revenue recognition WA\ FER R
At a point in time —EIRF [T 83,063 63,023
Over time — BRI - 193
Total ki 83,063 63,216
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Provision of PM services, PD services, CR services and other
medical services

The Group provides PM services, PD services, CR services and
other services to the customers. Revenue is recognised when the
relevant services are rendered, no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of the services rendered
and the respective amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Some of revenue from PM services is recognised when the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligations of a service contract can be measured reasonably,
revenue from the contract and the contract costs are recognised
using the percentage of completion method, measured by reference
to the percentage of contract costs incurred to date to the estimated
total contract costs for the contract. This method provides the

most reliable estimate of the percentage of completion.

When the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligations of a service contract cannot be measured
reasonably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that is expected to be recoverable.

The customers pay the contract prices to the Group according to
the payment schedules as stipulated in the contracts. If the payments
exceed the service rendered, a contract liability is recognised.

Services rendered to customers are normally made with credit terms
of 30 days. Deposits received are recognised as a contract liability.

A receivable is recognised when the services are rendered as this
is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because

only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Sales of drugs technologies and patents and trademarks

The Group sells drugs technologies, patents and trademarks
derived from its research to customers. Sales are recognised when
control of the products have been transferred, being when the
products are delivered to a customer, there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products and the customer has obtained legal titles to the products.

Sales to customers are normally made with credit terms of 30 days.
A receivable is recognised when the services are rendered as this
is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because

only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years, each

contributing over 10% of total sales of the Group are as follows:
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2020 2019
S —% U
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHETIT ANRHETIT
Provision of PM services to Tx%{i@iﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁgﬁi GRRRES BRI
Customer A T ST T B R T S IR s 4 EJﬁA 14,334 17,876
feflt TR R R . BRI
Provision of PM services to B AR éﬁfﬁiﬁﬂﬁfj@‘m B 27,587 14,528
Customer B
PRAE TR BRI . BRRIT 5T
Provision of PM and PD services to B A R BT I AR /\ijgﬂégﬁqf‘ﬁ 19,811 18,868
Customer C BRBHETC
Provision of PM services to T;:Ef BB RS TR R ST
Customer D BRI A TN B T 5 IR 4 %F/' D 14,151 -
6. OTHER INCOME 6. AU
2020 2019
SEoEE K
RMB’000 RMB’000
AT ANR#ETIT
Bank interest income STRLEICN 26 9
Interest income on financial assets held as investment AR 208 -
Others HAh, 69 23
303 32
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7. BB RT R
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: FRB RTa R o 2SR N P S THB R
2020 2019
B R —JUFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
NRHT I NRHTIT
(a) Finance costs () Bf 752 1
Interests on: FESZ H e
Lease interest FHEFR B 102 104
Bank borrowings SRR 61 68
163 172
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments as () G LI AR 7575 s
disclosed in note 8) WeiE 2 FHHIWE)
Salaries, bonuses and other benefits Wi L& N HARER) 7,056 11,710
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans SEHHEEOB ARG AER 1,232 3,064
8,288 14,774
(c) Other items (© HpEH
Auditors’ remuneration G 780 680
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Wt WG 184 1,130
Depreciation of right-of-use assets s — i FmEEE 107 142
Cost of services AR A 16,104 9,751
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8. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

8. EEM&

Director’s emoluments disclosed pursuant to GEM Listing Rule and

section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance as follows:

2020 FEHRE
2020 ANNUAL REPORT

HE_E_FEH5+_HA=+—HIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HH AR A SE RS LT A ARG 28
383 AR R AT

Directors’ fees
e
2020 2019
“EEE B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHEFT ARWTT

Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind
Frdr, HUE AR
2020 2019
SECRE CHJUF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMETT AR

Contributions to
defined contribution
retirement plans

RpAGHIE
2020 2019
ZECFE ZEE
RMB’000  RMB'000
AR ARBETIT

Share based payments Total
ARG RAERE S S el
2020 2019 2020 2019
e e e o =T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHEEFT AR¥EFT ARWFT ARKTFT

Executive directors

Mr. GUO Xia
FESE

Dr. SONG Xuemei
RE L

110 66

46 33

156 99

Non-executive directors
Py

JEfTESR

Mr. SU Yi
SRR

Independent non-executive directors
AT

Dr. NI Binhui
AL

Mr. QIU Rui
et

Mr. ZHEN Ling
e

Mr. LOTTER Mark Gavin
(Resigned on 20 June 2019)

Mr. LOTTER Mark Gavin
(A=A = HEHE)

110 66

46 33

156 99

There were no arrangements under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil). During the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019, no emoluments were paid by the

Group to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join

or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of

office.

R RESTH = AR =R EF A=+
H AR R, A G S 35 A ] 6 2 e i ) T eI < Y
L HE B AT SCAAT T I <2 7 8 S 2R IS [t S A AR AR
LSRR BT i SN A

T EEREBEBERAATI
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9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five (2019: five) individuals with the highest
emoluments, no individuals (2019: Nil) are directors whose
emoluments is disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining five (2019: five)
individuals are as follows:

B TSR E Mt

NOTES 70 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o fE I B R F N A £

AEESAL (TF I sfr) mEHM AL EFoR
W (R JUE: ofn) |, S CHTAM S, 8
s (CFRIUE: s FemEt A L2 S

2020 2019

SEOBE SR

RMB’000 RMB’000

N RHETIT N RHETIT

Salaries, bonuses and other benefits Hig. L& M HAER 721 874
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans EIFGEIR G R ER 61 77
782 951

The emoluments of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the band of HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000
in both years.

10. INCOME TAX

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income represents:

AE 5 e 1 37 N T e A s e 2 T 22 R 1,000,000 TG AH 5 1
Mo

10. P8
(a) A A DA RS M H A SRR 24 2 B :

2020 2019
SEOFE ENE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHTIT ANRHTIT

Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax AEERIE - REASERTER
Provision for the year IRAET 10,146 4,662
Income tax expense RS H 10,146 4,662

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group had no estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the Company and
its subsidiaries is calculated based on the Enterprise Income Tax
Law of the People's Republic of China (“EIT Law of the PRC”).
The Group is subject to a tax rate of 25%. Some subsidiaries of
the Company are eligible for tax incentives due to their location
and industry. These subsidiaries are subject to a preferential tax
rate of 9%. A subsidiary of the Group was approved and
certified by relevant authorities as “High and New Technology
Enterprises” and is entitled to a preferential EIT rate of 15% for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Taxation of other overseas subsidiaries are charged at the

appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant
countries.
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(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

applicable tax rates:

2020 FEHRE
2020 ANNUAL REPORT

BE—_E_FE+-A=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

(b) HBTRTRERF B i -

2020 2019

S —ENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMETIT ARMETIT

Profit before taxation BrETH A 70,796 32,454
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the Hos0oiti TR BRAATTE R A2 Ik

applicable tax rate of 25% 17,699 8,114

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible NATRERT AR R 1,324 490

Preferential income tax rates applicable to subsidiaries WA T AR BT RRE (9,084) (4,528)

Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised AR PR s T A 657 586

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not recognised BRI 2 R s (450) -

Tax at the Group's effective rate PSS 10,146 4,662

(c) Deferred tax not recognised:

At 31 December 2020, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of approximately
RMB37,000 (2019: approximately RMB1,055,000), as it is not
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
unused tax losses can be utilised in the relevant tax jurisdiction. The
unused tax losses will expire within five years from the end of the
respective reporting periods.

() AN L IR 7 -

HE-Z ZF+ A =+—H, KERMARLS AR
37,0000C (ZE—JLF: FIANRIE1,055,0000T) W SR FERH
TEERRIE TS B e, A RS R T RS AT R TR
P S 25 A [ P PR A (8 PR B0 e T ) MBS B R I o SR (e 1
B IR ISR TE 25 B IS R TR N R o

TEEREEBBERAATS
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 BREF

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is PR A 22 ) o 2 R e
based on the following:

2020 2019
- TR NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AN REETIC ANRHT I
Earnings
il
Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share 60,650 27,7192
FHE R AR A
2020 2019
e -t —F U
Number of Shares’000 Number of Shares’000
JRELT ST %
R
Number of shares
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 992,772 992,772
VA THE @R
Effect of share options converted 2,580 -
Rt
Issued ordinary shares at 31 December 995,352 992,772
127331 H e
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share 994,055 992,772
FHRE AR AR 1 PR R T2
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares arising from share options outstanding 3,050 -
R S R R B e T I 2
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share 997,105 992,772

[HEE LlFe SRl e Rali

12. DIVIDEND 12. &

The directors of the Company did not recommend the paymentof A5 FEHE A LT - F " ZFE+ " H=1—H R -F—
any dividend for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. T H = HA TR RS,
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 2. B Kkt
Leasehold Machinery and Motor Construction
improvements equipment vehicles ~ 1n progress Total
MY R MR HE TR Gl
COST: RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Bk ARKETE  ARMETT ARMTE ARMTE ARMTL
At 1 January 2019
AR H—H 5,672 20,474 645 46 26,837
Additions
ELcpill| - 1 - . 1
Disposal
5 - an - - an
At 31 December 2019 and 1J anuary 2020
A E—NEF T H =R E R~ —H 5,672 20,464 645 46 26,827
Disposal
JEE - (25) - - (25)
Disposal of subsidiaries
HrAafRE (4,546) (2,861) (645) - (8,052)
At 31 December 2020
S e 1,126 17,578 - 46 18,750

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT:
RFHiTe:

At 1 January 2019
n_FEFE-H—H 5,667 17,292 577 - 23,536

Charge for the year
AR - 1,130 - - 1,130

Disposal

B - (1) - - (1)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

R oE—NFE T H AR R IE—H—H 5,667 18,411 577 - 24,655

Charge for the year
AT - 184 - - 184

Disposal
BEE - (25) - - (25)

Disposal of subsidiaries
B AR RE (4,546) (2,692) (577) - (7,815)

At 31 December 2020
MR -FE+—H=+—H 1,121 15,878 - - 16,999

CARRYING AMOUNTS:
IRTET A

At 31 December 2019

P E—SUAE A=+ —H 5 2,053 68 46 2,172
At 31 December 2020
AR = —H 5 1,700 - 46 1,751

TEEREEERRAT7
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14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Disclosures of lease-related items:

B TSR E T

NOTES 70 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14, G E

BEAH A7 B SR A B

2020 2019

e ZERNE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETT  ARMTT

Buildings 3 ) - 2,595

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of the

Group’s lease liabilities is as follows:

AR BIBL G, M AR H T T

2020 2019

TERTERE S ZEJUE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETIC ARETIT

Less than 1 year —4EN - 223
Between 1 and 2 years VFRIAF - 223
Between 2 and 5 years A F54F - 670
Over 5 years IS - 2,960
- 4,076

Lease commitments of short-term leases FOHHE A 279 -
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets o R A H e 107 142
Lease interests FHEF)E 102 104
Expenses related to short term leases KRBT 104 -
Total cash outflow for leases FHEE B i AR 597 -

At 2019 The lease was entered with a related company, in which
a director of the Company, Mr. GUO Xia, has significant
influence.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, short-term lease was
entered with a director of the Company, Mr. GUO Xia.

The Group leases various buildings. Lease agreements are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 20 years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants and the leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.
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15. SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s major subsidiaries at 31 December

2020 are set out below:

15. Bt AE]

Hik—%
T

ZFRFEFZA=+H,

2020 FEHRE
2020 ANNUAL REPORT

BE_E_FE+-A=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

AR S FAIliNRE g =vie

Proportion of ownership interest
FAEERLE
Place of Particulars of Group’s
incorporation issued and paid effective Heldby the Heldbya Principal
Company name and business up capital interest company subsidiary Activities
B AT RERR B R TRAL AEEH  KAF 50N FEED
EEF RBAGHE ®E BE AR
Ve;lturephann British Virgin Islands US$100 100% 100% - Investment holding
Laboratories (BVI “BVI” 2 i
choreries BYD - (TBVE 10037¢ W
Limited (“VP(BVI)”).
Venovo Pharma US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
US Inc (“VP(US)”). BVI 1250 B
Inactive
VPSCRO Group Inc. US$1 100% 100% _ A
(“VPSCRO”) BVI 12550
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
pharmacodynamics and clinical research of drugs; Provision of
LITE AR The PRC US$200,000 PM services and PD services
. 100% - 100% e . -~ o
E&Wﬁﬁfwﬂ HHI 200,000 ¢ ’ ’ EWAEEEINPS s Aoy Be g e SR PN )
SRl RIREEGN R A5 EE i 2 BT R R 5 2 4
RS M RIS, bl BRI RS BRI oE B
ERIG A FU B R T IR B 5 2 i B R IR
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
Fe i 4 e AR The PRC RMB1,000,000 pharmacodynamics and clinical research of drugs; Provision of
BT A i R HE1.000,0005C 100% - 100% PM services and PD services
WEIE B BRBEE R KIRBER BB BB WoE R BRaE 9
ZEGL . RIRZER &Aﬁiﬁ%zﬁfﬁﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁ ZE 2 4E
o i RAFSE ;b BT R IR R IE o B8
SRR eI A K2 7 ?’J)i‘énnlaﬁ%éc‘ﬁﬁf%
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
N development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
VG Ry The PRC US$360,000 100% 100% pharmacodynamics and clinical research of drugs; Provision of
R EFI [ 360.000257C © - © PM services and PD services
HIFGE M BB SE . R AREE S R & Tl BE Tﬁ%&'ﬁ%*m
EATN %%ﬁ@uu& hk%unéfif*f*y@uﬁ&ﬁ&%i é‘i‘é:@'zZéé
RO IE R BERW ST, bl LB RIRRS . BRI 5e 5%
BRI AT ‘WTEH&#ELA%A““Fﬁ?&fﬂhﬁ‘%
T A The PRC US$600,000 Inactive
Sl T AR e 600,000 ¢ S1% - S1% A
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
pharmacodynamics and clinical research of drugs; Provision of
T A 4 The PRC RMB1,000,000 PM services and PD services
e i 100% - 100%
LR e ABHE1000.00078 BRI, KA QAL BESER IRy
ESTN )\W*numbfﬁmunZﬁﬂﬂ%%@A&Hﬁ% B2 28
SIS M B RIS , _E TR A PR % Ei RS B
BTG A R B 1T I B 2 o B IR
TR R The PRC RMB20,000,000 Inactive
100% - 100% e
IR R AR #20,000,0007C
1 4 B The PRC RMB10,000,000 Inactive
N R — 100% - 100% LRSS
Glym) ARAT i AELH$10,000,00000
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16. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT  16. /A R(EEEE H ESEE A\ EHEL e E

OR LOSS
2020 2019
TRTRA TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
N RHETIT N RHETIT
Non-current assets IEREGE
Unlisted Investment fund A b s S 12,160 -

The investment is a fund that is interest bearing and not quoted in B A BB, VSRR S A .
an active market. The principal and interest earned are linked to WL ) ) JE B R S GRA T AP BRAT BN 5 2 T 58 B 1)
certain bank deposits, interbank loans and exchange traded <Rl EEFNEE & (R ATEHES RN AR ZEK
financial assets and products (except for shares and convertible B A FPIRAE— H + [ i EIRZ SR AEERITHIA -
bonds). This imvestment could be redeemed from the bank at

anytime on demand before 10 January 2040.

17. CONTRACT COSTS AND LIABILITIES 17. & E AR AE
Disclosures of revenue-related items: e AFHBATE B Aok -
As at 31 December 2020  As at 31 December 2019 As at 1 January 2019
HE TR TFE HE_EZ—NF #HEZFNFE
+oA=A +oA=1H —~HA—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NERHETIT NIRRT ANR¥ETIT
Total contract costs
A TR AR 24,800 25.176 11,108
Total contract liabilities
R EI=Yis 1,161 52 367
Contract receivables (included in trade receivables)
& FERGR (&8 5 G 82,056 49,557 36,899

Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations IIMCAGAE AR AT A TR RIS S (B, THRHAELL N T
unsatisfied at end of year and expected to be recognised as T RE AN -

revenue in:

2020 2019
i —E N
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHETIT NRHET T
- 2020 - TERTEAE - 7,520
- 2021 - CEF A 10,000 -
10,000 7,520

Year ended 31 December HE+H=—HIEEE
Revenue recognised in the year that was included in ERTEE A A A AR 52 367

contract liabilities at beginning of year
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Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year:

2020 FEHRE
2020 ANNUAL REPORT

BE_E_FE+-A=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

AAEE A R BRI B[R AR A R AL -

2020 2019
—FEE —HHUF

Contract liabilities
EEaGiR=Li

Contract liabilities
A lA & A

RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHETIT AN RHETIT
Increase due to operations in the year
NS S 3,109 5
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue
BRI (2,000) (367)

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for products or services that the Group has transferred to a

customer.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
products or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

Costs to fulfill contracts with customers, mainly service fees to third
parties are capitalised as contract costs because the Group expects to
recover these costs. Capitalised contract costs are amortised to profit

or loss when the related revenue is recognised.

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

B[] AR S T 5 R ) s it I S0 i P
o

& R R R T AR G B 1 % P i IR Y 5 s, A
B P ENCEEHME (BB RS

S PSET A R A, EEGE B T R,
R A B E LR, A S R AR . EA
A TR A E e A BN IS 22 P 2

18. FEWHRAR R BSR4

2020 2019

CEEAE TEUE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHETIC AT

Trade receivables & 5 MEWCHOE 82,056 49,557
Bills receivable JEWCEE R 4,000 9,000
86,056 58,557

Included in trade receivables of the Group as at 31 December
2020 is the trade receivable from a related company of
approximately ~ RMB31,620,000  (2019:
RMB15,716,000), which is unsecured, interest-free and bears
normal commercial terms as other trade debtors. The related

approximately

company is an entity in which a director of the Company, Mr.
GUO Xia, has significant influence.

(a) Ageing analysis

The Group normally grants 30 days (2019: 30 days) credit period
to its customers since the invoice date. The bills receivable as at
31 December 2020 are non-interest bearing bank acceptance
bills and are aged within 12 months. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and
overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management.

B Gy WO T A B T A T — SR AE AN R
31,620,000 - F—JUF « KIANRMNE15,716,000) 2 & 5 MENGEK
o B4 5 MW 2 EHRAT S 8 R BL1G F REi  75
MM B B A FLRE TR A A B I E oA R
SN FIEATE RS,

(a) HRE T

AEHEHFETHEF0KR (ZE I 30H) FEHS
o MIRTERESTH = H, BRI TR
SUMESE, ACHRESH T (8 H o AR B )R Mot 42 i HOR
RGO, SRS R A LR SE A

TEEREBEEFERAFS
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TR S AR B WSO T M A S i 2 IR, 1% SR FL
ARSI

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
and bills receivables, based on the goods delivered or services

rendered date and net of allowances for doubtful debts, is as
follows:

2020 2019

ERCE R

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRHETIC ANRHETIC

Within 30 days 30HW 77,135 55,328
31 to 60 days 31E60[] 6,899 -
61 to 90 days 61290H - -
91 to 365 days 917365 1,940 3,160
Over 365 days 365 H 82 69
86,056 58,557

(b) The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9
to provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
expected credit losses also incorporate forward looking
information.

(b) ALEEEN «EEWHERS AR S TN AL

Tk, FURFTA BN o MR TR e et <, F it
WEEREL. & TERFPNGEEES, BEORRE
(7] B £ B8 R B AP R OB AT 20 A THIB (S R IR
(e = il

Within 30 31 to 365 Over 365
Current days pastdue days pastdue days past due Total

Hur  @yizoH N W31 H e AR
#365H 365 H

At 31 December 2020 RN E R H=+—H
Expected loss rate L EPRES 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Receivable amount JEWCR I (N RETT) 73,135 6,899 1,940 82 82,056
Loss allowance AL REETIT) - - - - -
At 31 December 2019 W E—JETH=1—H
Expected loss rate B PRES 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Receivable amount JEWCHR IR (N RETIT) 46,328 - 3,160 69 49,557
Loss allowance AL N REETIT) - - - - -
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19. TRADE DEPOSITS PAID

Trade deposits paid represented guarantee deposits paid to
customers in connection with service agreement signed for the
provision of PM services and will be refunded upon satisfaction of
contract terms.

2020 FEHRE
2020 ANNUAL REPORT

BE—_E_FE+-A=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

19. A4

TN ST G BN & P A R i B S R s R
IS SRR A AR B AR T 05 5 B R T S 5 5 ) A

20. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. AR R EoAt REWSGER
Details of the prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as  YE (< 2 Az Ho A EUC /AN -
follows:
2020 2019
SEOEE . SRR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHETIC ANRHTIT
Prepayments TEAEK 13,494 11,193
Value-added tax recoverable AT [ S (B A - 281
Advances to staff for business trips T B T ETRE: 333 411
Amounts due from directors TN F 0 220 82
Other receivables A IR I 3,088 506
17,135 12,473

(a) Amounts due from directors

The amounts due from directors, disclosed pursuant to section

383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

(a) VA 2 H R

MEEL CATRUEG H3830% 2 & FARBEIT

Maximum amount
outstanding during the year

=i = ET%:E Vi
Asat 31 December 2020  Asat 31 December 2019 KRR K
AR TR AR U 2020 2019
+=H=1+—H +_-H=+—H TR AU
Name of director RMB’O({) RM/B’O(E) RI\{I,B’O(K) RM,B’O%)
LS PN PN PN PN
Mr. Guo Xia 31 - 31 -
R S
Dr. SONG Xuemei 189 82 189 82
REME A

220 82 220 82

The amount due from a director is non-trade related, unsecured, JEWA T SR T A AR . 0 N B A B R IR

interest-free and repayable on demand.

TEEREREBEBERAFTE]
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21.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUED CHARGES

B TSR E T

NOTES 710 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. YR B RRak. HABBAEOR KR E A

2020 2019
SEORE RN
Note
Wt RMB’000 RMB 000
NRHETIC NRHETIC
Trade payables B A (a) 8,687 6,844
Litigation claims payables JEAT AR (b) 42 12,895
Accrued staff costs, welfare and benefits JEFT BT A AR FEF 1,833 2,182
Value-added tax and sundry taxes payable  JEAH(EFT A HAFTIE 6,496 4,937
Others HoAl (©) 1,536 11,148
18,594 38,006
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or  FfT A5 % 5 S HAB JEAF IR IEA 14F P S A mli e AN
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on
demand.
(a) Ageing analysis (2) FRE ST
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade AR AR B S A 3RV 2 IR s ZE H I A T
payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
2020 2019
Re— e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHETIC ANR¥ETIT
Within 30 days 30HA 2,146 58
31 days to 90 days 31H#e0H 899 2,680
91 days to 365 days 91H %365 H 2,546 3,880
Over 365 days HHIH365K 3,096 226
8,687 6,844

(b) Several subsidiaries of the Company are defendants in various
lawsuits and claims arising in the normal course of business. The
amounts provided represented the outstanding claims payables to
plaintiffs according to the respective court judgements.

(c) Included in other payables of the Group as at 31 December
2019 is the lease payable to a related company of approximately
RMB223,000, which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The related company is an entity in which a director of
the Company, Mr. GUO Xia, has significant influence.
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22. LEASE LIABILITIES
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2. HEAE

Present value of

Lease payments lease payments

FHEAK FHE A BUE
2020 2019 2020 2019
TRTE ZEF I ZEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
N BRHETIT NRHETIT N RHEETTT N RHETTT
Within one year 14EW - 223 - 88
In the second to fifth years, inclusive &8 24E 5] 4554F - 893 - 403
After five years SR - 2,960 - 2,127
) 4076 - 2,618
Less: Future finance charges W KRR B - (1,458) - -
Present value of lease liabilities HEaEHEE - 2,618 - -
Less: Amount due for settlement Jk: 128 A N EHAS E
within 12 months MR (RIREI A
(shown under current liabilities) 1) - - - (88)
Amount due for settlement after 12{[ H &4 R0
12 months - - - 2,530

At 31 December 2019, the average effective borrowing rate was
5.22%. Interest rates are fixed at the contract dates and thus expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

Lease liabilities are related to leases with a related company, which

BWEE—NETAST—H, FYEBESRES
5.22%0 FIRIEA A H AR E, PR i % o B i R A Ao fE M
R R B o

AR — R BB A RIS AR, AT — (o,

a director of the Company, Mr. GUO Xia, has significant — FEE 4ok, S g EAME
influence.
23. BANK BORROWINGS 23, $R1TERR
2020 2019
TR TR —FE U
RMB’000 RMB’000
PN S TR ANE¥TIC
Bank loan SRITEK 1,500 1,500

The loan was unsecured, interest-bearing at the Loan Prime Rate of
Beijing Bank plus 50 points and was guaranteed by a director of
the Company, Dr. SONG Xuemei. The effective interest rate
during the year ended 31 December 2020 was 4.79% (2019:
5.22%) per annum and repayable within one year.

fif‘xﬁ%iﬁ%ﬂﬂfﬁfmuﬂv\ﬂﬁlqj ML, REMHELAE
RS TSR T S AT E A R AL AL U R TR R 3
IEsoRh rEE . R FFE A = —H IR E
BRI 479 (CR—UFEFZH =1+ —HIEHE - 522
i) o

TEEREREBEBERAAES
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24. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(a) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the

24, AR bt

BRI PSR Mt

(a) MIEFRE et AL BICET  SFA BELAF A ) SR Bl

NOTES 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

G e S RE A A TR I MY AR A Bk 2 [ 2 S R A
EREARSE BRI o A FME B RE R A 0 T AE A0 S AR 2 ]

consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in Z SRR -
the Company’s individual components of reserves between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
Share-
Based
Share Payment Capital Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
A [ty Bt j=&Nriii N REtiEiR it
AT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
PN ARMETIT AR ARFETT PN N e NRHETIT
At 1 January 2019
woE—hFE—H—H - 3,920 6,139 28,011 (156,226) (118,156)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year
AAF R A SR - - - - (1,959 (1,959
Cancellation/lapse of share options
IRISIEREE i - (1,026) - - 1,026 -
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020
p oy 11 5 = [ Rl & Ve e s ey | - 2,894 6,139 28,011 (157,159) (120,115)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year
ARSI IR AR S S A - - - - (8.464) (8,464)
Cancellation/lapse of share options
B e - @31 - . 31 i
Shares issued upon exercise of share options
SR THER R 1,402 (590) - - - 812
At 31 December 2020
B FEFH=1—H 1,402 2,273 6,139 28,011 (165,592) (127,767)
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(b) Share capital (b) A&
2020 2019
i T

Authorised: Number of Number of

i Shares’000 HK$000 Shares’000 HK$000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 (2019: HK$0.1) each fBe#eooo T JBe#eooo LTI
T 0.1 T (20194 0.137T)

At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020

—EZJUE—H Akt A AR E R A= 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: Number of Number of

EUBE AT A R Shares’000 RMB’000 Shares’000 RMB’000

' e Tt : (SO

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 (2019:HK$0.1) each At 1 January Bl AR B ARRET
LA 0.1 9IC (20194F: 0.19T) —H—H 992,772 88,673 992,772 88,673
Shares issued upon exercise of share options

Fr i R A T (B 2,580 233 - -
At 31 December 2020

REEZRE A =4 995,352 88,906 992,772 88,673

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(i) The subscription rights attaching to 2,580,000 share options
were exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.45 per share,
resulting in the issue of 2,580,000 shares for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of HK$1,161,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,045,000). An amount of RMB590,000 was transferred
from the share-based payment reserve to share premium upon the

exercise of the share options.

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Special reserve

The special reserve represents the differences between the
nominal value of the shares of VP (BVI) (a holding company of
of the

reorganisation) and the nominal value of the Company’s shares

the other members Group prior to the group

issued pursuant to the group reorganisation.

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the additional contributions made by
the shareholders of the Company and the additional contributions
made by the non-controlling shareholder of the subsidiary of the
Company prior to the listing of the Company’s shares on The
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. It also includes
the premium of the issued share capital of the Company.

Al A NAREA R IOIBT EIRAI ., AT RETA A 4
i E A IR AR AR R I 0 A A T R i
By T A S

(i) A H 2,580,000 B HHHE 1 R G RE LA RF 0. 4576 7T 1Y
FRISERATAE  B5472,580,000% LAKEIR 4 1 w2 1 A JBE A7
R A& AR 1,161,000 (FT4 A RH1,045,0000C) -
J 53 1 A A N BGTRE590,0007T DAL T 3 S SUTARE FR5 1) 47340
8 e A A R

(o) bt M A H 1
()3t
FeRIGER LR VPBVI) (RS EATHT AR KAk B A

ST AR TRME R A A WA R A 4R B A T3 47 2
JBe T W 5 T 2 2o

(i) BEATH AR
GRS R A A RO AR 2 w4 A S Bir B T Hi A

VEZBINEG, LARCA A wI B 88 2wl D B SR 4 3
BUNEE .. EABREIMEA A ] S BT A -

TEEREBEERAAAE
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(iii) Statutory reserve and statutory enterprise expansion fund

Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the Articles of Association and
Board regulations of the subsidiaries of the Company, each of the
subsidiary is required to transfer 10% of its net profit, as
determined under PRC accounting regulations, to a statutory
reserve until the fund aggregates 50% of each of the subsidiary
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of any dividends to shareholders. The statutory reserve
shall only be used to make good of previous years’ losses, to
expand the subsidiary’s production operations or to increase the
capital of the subsidiary. Upon approval by a resolution at a
shareholder’s general meeting, the subsidiary may transform its
statutory reserve into share capital and issue bonus share to
existing shareholders in proportion to their original shareholdings
or to increase the nominal value of each share currently held by
them, provided that the balance of the reserve fund after such
issue is not less than 25% of the registered capital. Moreover, the
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC can transfer
certain percentage of their profit after taxation on voluntary basis,
as determined under the PRC accounting regulations to the
enterprise expansion fund.

(iv) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the net
assets of the subsidiaries and the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof pursuant to the
Group Reorganisation.

The Company’ reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders comprise the capital reserve and contributed
surplus. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, dividends shall be payable out of profits or other
reserves of the Company. Under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the Company must be able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately
following the distribution of any dividends.

25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

"Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC,
the subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by
the relevant local authorities whereby the subsidiaries in the PRC
are required to make contributions to the Schemes at rates which
range from 0.4% to 19% (2019: 0.4% to 19%) of the eligible
employee’s salaries during the year. The relevant local
government authorities are responsible for the entire pension

obligations payables to retired employees.
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W, BN S BOR B A A A I B T, A %%
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26. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 20
June 2003 whereby the directors of the Company are authorised, at
their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including
directors of any company within the Group, to take up options at
predetermined considerations to subscribe for shares of the
Company. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for

one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

(a) The terms and conditions of the share options are as follows:
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26. HERR (AT LU 2 EE T 5

ARNTR ZFFE AN A A BRI — DB R R 98
I, AR & FERZETE SR AL JER (/PJ%ZIK
EETE T M AR &) FA IR AR A 2 w3

fo WSRO T RoA NG AR A W — B ﬁﬁxﬁxfﬁz
TEF

() TAGEHR H 2 AR i S ARA T (o S S M 2 Ak B e R A

2020: o
At 1 January Exercise of Cancellation/ At 31 December
2020 share options  Lapsed during the year 2020
Grant date Exercise price ~ Note AR T RAR WREATRE AT i S e
EHEE i —H—H i I e e
30 June 2015 HK$0.45
2015-06-30 HEREAS () (ii) 13,490,000 (2,580,000) (60,000) 10,850,000
13,490,000 (2,580,000) (60,000) 10,850,000
2019: TR
At 1 January Exercise of Cancellation/ At 31 December
2019 share optif)ns Lapsed during the year 2019
Grant date Exercise price Note AT B IR HAREATHE AR JE A Sy
e HIY] T{EfH e s = HuE/sEs A =t+—H
7 April 2009 HK$0.435
2009-04-07 K435 M 3,560,800 ; (3.560.800) )
30 June 2015 HKS$0.45 . _
2015-06-30 W45l (i) 15,290,000 (1800,000) 13,490,000
18,850,800 - (5,360,800) 13,490,000
Notes: i
(i) These options were exercisable within the period commencing (1) FEEBEBBREETA -FZZNENHEHE - —LFEN
from 7 April 2009 to 6 April 2019. The options lapsed on 6 April H 75 HHI R AN TS« s WS HE R =& — JL4F
2019. P9 H 7~ H R R
(i) These options are exercisable in three trench with the (i) FESEMSBRERT o = BF5 0. P = —N4E N H =1H

maximum percentage of options exercisable with the periods
commencing from 30 June 2016 to 29 June 2017, 30 June 2017 to
29 June 2018 and on 30 June 2018 being 40%, 70% and 100%
respectively. The options are valid and effective until 29 June

2025.

EoF—LENH O TLH *7\ LEANH=+HE
—E-JUEAH AR E AN = HLUE
, S EL409% 0%&1oo%ZTb@ﬁ@Eﬁﬁxf"‘Eﬁa\tbilﬁ
muE%Z!i/\TEx{ o WIEIRREKA —E HFESNH
H 238

T EEREEBEEFRQ A8
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(b) HEBERE 2 Wi A hRE P Y47 (T

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options that are exercisable are as follows:

2020 2019
e “E
Weighted average Number of Weighted average Number of
exercise price HK$ options exercise price HK$ options
hIRET-34 MR 2 B H hRETYy B BH
T TR e
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
A HAAT i 0.45 13.490,000 0.447 18,850,800
Exercise of share options
WIREATRE 0.45 (2.580,000) - -
Cancellation/lapsed during the year
JRARAE BEIH /87 0.45 (60,000) 0.448 (5,360,800)
Outstanding at the end of the year
A = H AT 0.45 10,850,000 0.45 13,490,000
Exercisable at the end of the year
A=t HAT A 0.45 10,850,000 0.45 13,490,000

A ZF DA T H S HARAT S IR AT (R

The option outstanding as at 31 December 2020 had their exercise

price of HK$0.45 (2019: HK$0.45) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 4.49 years (2019: 5.49 years).

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group
wholly related to amounts paid to the Company’s directors, as
disclosed in note 8.

(b) Other related parties transactions

In addition to the financial arrangement dealt with a director of

the Company as mentioned in note 23, the Group entered into
the following material related party transactions during the year:

Measfll (ZF—JUE: W45l AOmBEFRN R FE
WAE4494F (—FE—JUF: 5494F) o

27. WMt 2 EA B A&

(a) FEE B A BN

LIRS st UNE Y SRR UE T RRN/ATSTE i S AR ()
TE8 i -
(b) HABBHE 72 5

IR BE I 23 Tk A A ) 2 S R T 2 A 2 HE AN, AN A A AR
AEIAYS N ON ) N

2020 2019
S “ENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHETIT ANRHEFIT
Lease payment to a director, Mr. GUO Xia
SRS E A 93 -
Lease payment to a related company (Note)
SR T A 391 223
Income for PM services from a related company (Note)
TERAM 2 TR b T2 8 2B R IR T 50 B SR Ak T B T S IR MO (FFHE) 27,587 14,528
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Note:

A related company is an entity in which a director of the
Company, Mr. GUO Xia has significant influence.

(c) Details of balances with related parties are disclosed in notes
18 and 21.

28. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES IN RESPECT
OF LITIGATION CLAIMS

As of 31 December 2020, certain subsidiaries of the Group are
defendants in proceedings relating to its customers. Based on the
respective court judgements, management is of the opinion that
the outcome of such proceedings will not exceed the existing
accruals made for such litigation claims as disclosed in note
21(b). Accordingly, there will be no significant impact to the
financial status of the Group.

29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

During the reporting period, the Company entered into
agreements with independent third parties to dispose of its
interests in certain subsidiaries.
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BRI 2> R AR AS 2 W] PR S A RE A % S O ] A T

R BAER .

(c) BB 2~ W] 2 365 0 EAE S PR FHIR LA I 1 18 S 21 ¢

=53
o

28 AR AL AR A IR

R DFRFELT A=A H, REE AR A ]
RIS R R R o AN SRR I B 25 g A o 2 e e A
BRI, RS REA SO AR, R S AL
EOMEAS O HH B 21 (b) 51 HH A A IR Al I, (R
AR AR DB A Y B

29. AR ETMEMNRE

WA N, AEEAREE =R AT, SRR =TT
S

Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follows: JEE RN
RMB’000

ANERHETIT
Property, plant and equipment e NN ] 237
Contract costs ARl A 329
Trade and bills receivables B Ty MEVAU T B A T4 5,749
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TAAFER $R S A G TH 27,835
Bank balances Bl MBS EY) 47
Trade payables, other payables and accrued charges BTy AR, HL A ST R e (30,426)
Contract liabilities AlF 4,751)
Net liabilities disposed e (980)
Intragroup current accounts written off IR AR Ak (12,585)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries T ARG 15,585
Total consideration — satisfied by cash DABR A S A ) A _2.020
Net cash outflow on disposal: i R B i S
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of ik B R B 4 S ) 47

TEEEREEEFERL AN
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30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure it is effective and optimises
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group prevailing and projected capital
expenditure and projected investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may consider the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, the
return of capital to shareholders, the issue of new shares or
selling assets to reduce debt.

The Group assesses the total equity/deficiency presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of financial position for

capital management purposes.

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks

arise in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage
these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group has policies
in place to ensure credit is granted to customers with appropriate
credit history and good reputations through evaluations on
customer past history of making payments when due and have
the ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which they operate. Trade and bills receivables are due within
30 days (2019: 30 days) from the date of billing. Normally, the

Group does not obtain collateral from customers.
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The Group has a concentration of credit risk on its four largest
customers (2019: five largest customers) and the largest
customer which represent 91% (2019: 90%) and 85% (2019:
32%) of the total trade receivables balance respectively.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited because
the counterparties are authorised financial institutions with
sound credit ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position after deducting any impairments

or allowances.

The Group considers whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of financial assets on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period by comparing the risk of a
default occurring as at the reporting date with the risk of default
as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.

Especially the following information is used:

- internal credit rating;

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the borrower’s ability to meet its
obligations; and

- significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour
of the borrower, including changes in the payment status of

borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is
more than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment. A
default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to
make contractual payments within 60 days of when they fall
due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group. The Group normally categorises
a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make
contractual payments greater than 360 days past due. Where
loans or receivables have been written off, the Group, if
practicable and economical, continues to engage in enforcement

activity to attempt to recover the receivable due.
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The Group uses two categories for non-trade loan receivables
which reflect their credit risk and how the loan loss provision is
determined for each of the categories. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical loss

rates for each category and adjusts for forward looking data.
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AR S AR B 5y B SRt T R, S s LA
JoRBgR LK e e S s TR AU ) SRR IB AR e o AERT T
WUE R AR, AR AR R LR,
MR RTIEE EORE T 3R o

Category Definition Loss provision gl EFE LR S

Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity to pay | 12 month expected losses JEifT FEHEBRAT, SZARES R 12/ A WRITE %&
Non-performing | Significant increase in credit risk Lifetime expected losses AT {5 FH R B 48 R P BUHAL
(b) Liquidity risk (b) Il ¥ <5

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
Board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels
of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

AL AR ERA R W EE B E M, OEAF
TR B A M A N B LA L BB 755K, M i
BT T K e, B RE w i S
AR T 2 SRR S U B A Y e e M S R
ZAGDL, AR AR R AEH5 78 AL 3R it e M M o 2
fokar TR e 2 FEE, DB LR R g 5

HE.

TREIIAEER R 2 EMA AR T EAOMR, 1
TR A HRIT BB B (AL AR, s
SGelh Hsf T 2 MRSt R R ) DA EBAMER
BRI B 7 FUEIE M -

Contractual undiscounted cash flows

BRIAPT BB SN
Within 1 year or on demand Carrying amount
RN EE R RN
RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 e S AT NN
Trade payables, other payables o AT, HA R 0E
and accrued charges Mo e 18,594 18,594
Bank borrowings SRATE 1,514 1,500
Contractual undiscounted cash flows
BRIARITH B ERRH
Within 1 year or on demand Carrying amount
RN EE R JRTAIEL
RMB’000 RMB’000
2019 —EF A ANRHETIT ARHETIT
Trade payables, other payables GO eI, A AT A
and accrued charges MEsT 2 38,006 38,006
Bank borrowings SRR 1,514 1,500
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(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
deposits and bank borrowing. The bank deposits and borrowings
bear interest at variable rates and expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

The Group’s interest rate profile is monitored by management.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in the interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, it would have
increased/decreased  the
accumulated losses by approximately RMB141,000 (2019:

profit after tax and

Group’s profit after tax and

decreased/increased the Group’s
increased/decreased of accumulated losses by approximately
RMB70,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that changes in interest rates occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for financial instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis
point increase or decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual end of reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2019.

(d) Categories of financial instruments

2020 FEHRE
2020 ANNUAL REPORT

BE_E_FE+-A=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

(ORIESN A

SR 2 B AR A SRAT A O I B R AR
ZAATAAR O BAE B IR i B B . L, AR
VA T 36 1) 23 B L A AR S B (LR i A B [ e A B

o

BURE AT

PR B A = H, RIS BT
— LR A HAL TS N R A2 BT,
ARG BRAR i R 0D K BT RS b H N R
W141,0000C (FE—JUE: BRRERFITR B0 R RHE
HEHEI, B #) NREE70,00008) -

AL OSBRI 5§ L0480 0 5 0 8
T, S ELHE A T AU FT I EAC £ A7 BARRT A B T
LRI — B TSNS B B T
1 R AP 2 6T e A AL 2 0 BT
“ R AT

(d) <Rl TH AR

2020 2019
SEOBE CE N
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥EETIT PN S
Financial assets: SR E:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss LA SUEERT AR £ 1Y 4 Rl 12,160 -
Financial assets at amortised cost (including DI A AR F i e plE E (B8 8la
cash and cash equivalents) N B4 S 107,690 69,815
Financial liabilities: ERlEfE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost DA AR AT i B < R L 20,094 39,506

(e) Currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant foreign currency risk as
most of income and expenses are denominated in the functional

currency of the Group.

AEREAAFAE T RSN E R, R KR A S H LA
R REE R

TEEEREEEBERQ2AIS
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(f) Fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation

techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the

measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change

in circumstances that caused the transfer.

(i) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December 2020:

BRI TSR Mt
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() ARfEE
ARBERTIG2HE A HET AP S EE
EERS B A A R B RS . LAR A SRR R SRR

ASREEE K, AR A S R B BT 202 =1
JEX.

—ERE . ARGEEAE TR H AT B R SR A
BT P U R )

TR . B AE AR S B R B R E EY
B s A A A

=AM A R AT BIHEA
AREEEHRE, BRESEAZ HE, sRIEDS A

B O OUEE AR, R TS A RS AT AT = (A .

() “FTRAEFTH = B A A ESR PR

Description Fair value measurements using: R I SAEAE T
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—‘,\ﬁ 4‘:\%& En& /ﬁ\-ﬁ‘
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
YN YN NN AT T
Recurring fair value measurements:
RO B ERH
Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Ik LA E LA B EET RS - 12,160 - 12,160
Total recurring fair value measurements
BEMEA R ER RAE - 12,160 - 12,160

(i1) Disclosure of valuation techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements at 31 December 2020:

As at 31 December 2020

W E B A =F— H A R B
MR AT

WoE e A= H

Descrinti Valuation technique Key input Fair value
escription et -
A fii 5 EELN IS
TR
RMB’000
PN N el

Investments at fair value through profit or loss Discounted cash flow Market interest rate
DYV RN SRS L N RN Ra < AR TS TR 12,160
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 32. AT B B BRI

COMPANY
2020 2019
—ERTE ZE—JUE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHETIT ANR¥ETIT
Non-current asset EREEE
Interests in subsidiaries B g s IR S - -
Current assets WmEEE
Prepayments and other receivables TSRO H A AR 2,193 88
Cash and cash equivalents Bl B4 Y 196 184
2,389 272
Current liabilities i E=Cis
Other payables and accruals A A SRR e s 6,537 5,327
Amounts due to subsidiaries BT Jo5 2 ] REASF 20 34,713 26,387
41,250 31,714
Net current liabilities e s (38,861) (31,442)
Net liabilities 2=y (38,861) (31,442)
Equity Wz
Share capital JEE AR 88,906 88,673
Reserves Tttt (127.,767) (120,115)
Total equity KM R (38.861) (31,442)

TEEBEREEBEBRRA7
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TFMBERE

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS ES
Year ended 31 December
HEt+—H=1—HI1FE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
CETEE CEUE CENE CER L DR AR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMETIE ARFETIC AR¥TIC AR¥ETIT ANRHETIT
Revenue (-t IUN 83,063 63,216 59,606 58.491 20,241
Profit/(loss) before tax WA (R 70,796 32.454 27,668 33,898 2,085
Income tax (expense)/credit KGR (10,146) (4,662) (4,504) (3.444) 42
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive AR IR 2 18 2 AT
income/(loss) for the year after R B TE) &
non-controlling interests SRS R AR 60,650 27,792 23,164 30,454 2,127
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BENEE
As at 31 December
A H = HIEEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
TERCEE CFNFE F)E FE TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETE ARETIE ARETT ARETC ANR#ETIT
Total assets less current liabilities M E A 118,675 59,510 29,188 5,804 (25,166)
Non-current liabilities Bl E= N - (2,530) - - -
Total equity/(deficit) HARERR ) (51H) 118,675 56,980 29,188 5,804 (25,166)
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